








January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 10

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, JANUARY 7, 2020
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Gratton Miller
Jeff Dalling
John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

Absent: Vacancy

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

December 3, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve December 3, 2019 Meeting Minutes as presented.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 10

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 11-19,
filed by Kelly Builders, LLC which would allow for a townhome development
within an R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the south side of Indian View Heights at
the southern terminus of Griswold Drive. (1553 Indian View Heights Drive - APN
001-530-026)

Jon Wahrenbrock, 1800 Griswold Drive, stated that he had some concerns with the traffic. He
mentioned that both Griswold and Indian View Heights were bad intersections. The line of site
for west bound cars on Indian View Heights is really bad. He didn’t know where the proposed
entrance would be, but he assumed it would be next to the driveway for the Jehovah’s Witness
Church. He had concerns about increasing the traffic, the intersections, and Fire, because there
was only one access to the subdivision.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, pointed out the entrance on the plan that was provided. He
mentioned that the entrance was offset and that it would be centered between Griswold and the
adjacent driveway for the church.

Mr. Wahrenbrock said the traffic there was already bad enough, particularly if you are trying to
get onto Indian View Heights from Griswold. In the summer there is a heavier traffic load. He
wanted to make sure that they weren’t creating a bigger problem.

Lana Carter, Carter Engineering, wanted to add that when they were placing that intersection
they made sure they were meeting the City Code requirements for where their approach could be
in relation to the intersection, and also meeting the Visibility Triangle within that intersection.
What they have proposed meets the Code requirements and site visibility.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated December 4, 2019.
Staff recommended conditional approval subject to the findings and conditions listed in the Staff
Report.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, wanted to expand on the traffic discussion. The
calculated average daily trips for this project is 58, which is well below the requirement for a
traffic study. The location of the driveway is compliant with the Code. If you look at the traffic
movements that will happen at this location, most people coming out of the development will be
turning right to head to Ruby Vista, and people coming into the development will be coming
west along Indian View Heights and turning left into the development before they get to
Griswold. There should not be an impact on the intersection of Griswold and Indian View
Heights.

Mr. Thibault recommended approval as presented by staff.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, recommended approval as presented by staff.



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 10

Commissioner Stefan Beck acknowledged Mr. Wahrenbrock’s concern for the traffic, and he
appreciated staff acknowledging it. Traffic has always been an issue, and Commissioner Beck
hoped that as Elko grows that the City will always take that into consideration. It is an important
thing to keep in mind as the City grows.

***Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit No. 11-19, subject to the
conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated December 4, 2019, listed as follows:

1. The CUP 11-19 shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the
submitted application conforming to the exhibits as presented.

2. Landscaping shall be installed and not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic at the
intersections. Home Owner’s Association is to provide such maintenance and care
as is required to obtain the effect intended by the original landscape plan for the
development.

3. CUP 11-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after
commencement of work.

4. The permit shall be personal to the permittee, Kelly Builders, LLC. and applicable
only to the specific use of multiple family residential and to the specific property
for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may approve the
transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site
development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been
satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run
with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the
permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be
the responsibility of the property owner.

5. Guest parking to be for guest vehicles only, no RV parking allowed on site.
6. All parking lot lighting is to be shielded or cut-off design.
7. An illumination schedule is required to ensure lighting is adequate for safety with

minimal impact to adjacent properties.
8. There shall not be any placement of any mail gang boxes or kiosks in association

with this complex placed in the city’s right of way and shall remain internal to the
complex

9. The exterior of the building shall be compatible with surrounding areas and shall
be similar to what is presented in the application.

10. The common areas are to be maintained in an acceptable manner at all times.

Development Department Conditions:
1. Tentative Map 13-19 and a Final Map must also be approved by the City of Elko

and NDEP and those conditions met
2. NDEP approval of construction plans required prior to issuance of a grading

permit
3. BMPs are required during grading/construction as set forth in the City's

Construction Site BMP Handbook found online at:
http://cms4.revize.com/revize/elkonv/WPCP-
Management%20PlansConstruction%20BMP%20Manual-DEC2015.pdf



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 10

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were that the proposed development
is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed
development is in conformance with the existing transportation infrastructure and the
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The site is suitable for the proposed use.
The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses. The proposed use is in
conformance with City Code 3-2-5 (E) R- Single-Family Multiple Family Residential
Zoning District and meets the required setbacks for multiple family development. The
proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of the
Elko City Code.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

2. Review and consideration of Tentative Map No. 13-19, filed by Kelly Builders,
LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled The Town Homes at Ruby View
involving the proposed division of approximately 1.297 acres of property into 10 lots
for residential development and 1 common lot within the R (Single-Family and
Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the south side of Indian View Heights at
the intersection of Griswold Drive. (1553 Indian View Heights Drive - APN 001-
530-026)

Ms. Rambo went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated December 17, 2019. Staff
recommended conditional approval. Ms. Rambo mentioned that the Commission would need to
modify a condition and add a new one. Condition No. 4 should read that just the Tentative Map
must be approved, so strike “and Construction Plans”. They would need to add Condition No.
12, which is to read that the Construction Plans must be approved by the Nevada Department of
Environmental Protection prior to issuance of a grading permit by the City of Elko. That is a new
requirement by the State.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Tentative
Map No. 13-19 subject to the conditions found in the City of Elko Staff Report dated
December 17, 2019, with a few modifications made by the Planning Commission listed as
follows:

Development Department:
1. Conditional Use Permit 11-19 must be approved and all conditions be met.
2. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to

the proposed subdivision.
3. Tentative Map approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with

preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.
4. The Tentative Map must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental

Protection prior to submitting for Final Map approval by the City of Elko.
5. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 10

improvements.
6. The applicant must submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4)

years in accordance with NRS.360(1)(a).  Approval of the Tentative Map will
automatically lapse at that time.

7. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.
8. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal.
9. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.
10. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City

code.
11. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to Serve letter upon approval of the

Tentative Map by the City Council.
12. Construction Plans must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental

Protection prior to the issuance of a grading permit by the City of Elko.

Fire Department:
1. Work with the church and good relations for the gate(s) to be placed to the back of

the new subdivision for emergency access.
2. Gates to all backyards for emergency access to be constructed.

a. Keeping an isle for emergency responders to access if needed to the rear of
all properties

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were that the proposed subdivision
and development is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The
proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan. The proposed subdivision and development does not
conflict with the Airport Master Plan. The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the
City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer
Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. The proposed
subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Program.
The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system. No zoning amendment is required for
the proposed subdivision. In accordance with Section 3-3-5(E(2), the proposed subdivision
and development will not result in undue water or air pollution based on the following: a.
There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision
would not be in conformance with all the applicable environmental and health laws and
regulations. b. There is adequate capacity within the City’s water supply to accommodate
the proposed subdivision. c. The proposed subdivision and development will no create an
unreasonable burden on the existing water system. d. There is adequate capacity at the
Water Reclamation Facility to support the proposed subdivision and development. e. The
proposed subdivision and development will be connected to the City’s programed sanitary
sewer system. Therefore, the ability of soils to support waste disposal does not require
evaluation prior to Tentative Map approval. f. Utilities are available in the immediate area
and can be extended for the proposed development. g. Schools, fire and police, and
recreational services are available throughout the community. h. The proposed subdivision
and development will not cause unreasonable traffic congestion or unsafe conditions with
respect to existing or proposed streets. i. The area is not located within a designated flood
zone. Concentrated storm water runoff has been addressed as shown on the grading plan. j.
The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in unreasonable
erosion or reduction in the water-holding capacity of the land thereby creating a dangerous



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 10

or unhealthy condition. The proposed subdivision submittal is in conformance with
Sections 3-3-6, 3-3-9, 3-3-10, 3-3-11, 3-3-12, 3-3-13, 3-3-14, and 3-3-15 of City Code. The
proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City Code.
The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City
Code. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-
5(E)(2). Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops. The
proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
Code. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops. The proposed
subdivision and development is not located in a designated flood hazard area and is in
conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code. The proposed subdivision design shall conform
to Title 9, Chapter 8 of City Code.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

3. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No.
5-19, filed by Koinonia Development, LP, for a change in zoning from C (General
Commercial), PQP (Public-Quasi, Public), and RMH (Mobile Home Park and
Mobile Home Subdivision) to CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning District,
approximately 4.008 acres of property, to allow for a townhome development, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is generally located on the south side of N. 5th Street, across
from Mary Way. (APNs 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-099, and
a portion of 001-610-075)

Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated December 6, 2019. Staff
recommended conditional approval with the conditions and findings listed in the Staff Report.

Chairman Jeff Dalling asked when the property sale would go through.

Ms. Laughlin explained that Mr. Fitzgerald has paid for the property and the deed has been
signed by Mayor. They are still working on getting some signatures on the BLA Map. Once
those signatures are acquired, then everything will go over to High Desert Engineering and they
will be recording deed and the BLA. This rezone will be going to City Council at the end of
January, and once it approved by City Council, then resolution will not be signed by the Mayor
until the deed and BLA are recorded.

Ms. Rambo had no comments or concerns.

Mr. Thibault and Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval.

Ms. Laughlin clarified that the rezone is to bring the property into conformance with Master
Plan. Next month this property will have a Tentative Map and a Conditional Use Permit on the
agenda.



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 10

Commissioner Evi Buell said it would be good to see this gap filled in.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an Ordinance, which
conditionally approves Rezone No. 5-19 subject to the condition founding in the City of
Elko Staff Report dated December 6, 2019, listed as follows:

1. Resolution for the zone amendment not to be signed by the mayor until after the
Deed and BLA for the Land Sale 1-19, selling a portion of APN 001-610-075 from
the City of Elko to Koinonia Development LP., be recorded.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were that the proposed zone district
is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed zone
district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan and is
consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure. The property is not located
within the Redevelopment Area. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in
conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan. The proposed zone district is in
conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B). The proposed zone district is in
conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-9(B). The application is in conformance with
Elko City Code 3-2-21. The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special
Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). Development under the proposed zone district will not
adversely impact natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City of
Elko Master Plan, specifically amending the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas
Map 8, Land Use Component Corresponding Zoning Districts, Transportation
Component Best Practice 2.3 and Roadway Classifications, Existing Functional
Classification Atlas Map 11 and Atlas Map 12, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Ms. Laughlin wanted to go through each of the areas of the Master Plan that staff is proposing
changes to. There are quite a few areas that we will be looking at. She then went over the
proposed change to Atlas Map 8. The area that is hatched in red is listed as low density
residential, but is surrounded by medium density residential. Staff is proposing to change this
area to medium density residential to be consistent all the way across. The next change is adding
the Residential Business District to the Neighborhood Mixed Use. Neighborhood Mixed Use
only allows Commercial Transitional and Convenience Commercial. Staff is proposing to add
Residential Business and bring that district into conformance with the Master Plan. The next
section is Section 8, which are the Access Management Standards. There are several changes
proposed to that. It will be bringing the existing table in the Transportation Component into



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 10

conformance with the City Code. The City Code specifically gives distance separations between
intersections. The proposed changes will bring the Master Plan into conformance with the City
Code. She added that there are only a few classifications in the current table, and staff is
proposing to add all the roadway classifications to the table. This will bring the table into
conformance with other Sections of the Master Plan, as well as the City Code. There is another
proposed change to the Transportation Component. College Avenue was listed as a Minor
Arterial from 9th Street to Idaho Street. Staff would like to designate 9th to 12th as a Residential
Collector, and from 12th to Idaho would remain as a Minor Arterial.

Commissioner Buell asked if the construction at the High School would affect the traffic count
expected in that direction, or if it would be expected more in the North/South direction.

Ms. Laughlin explained that all the parking access would be off of 13th Street. Ms. Laughlin
explained that with those two changes, it would also change Atlas Map 11 and 12.

Ms. Rambo clarified that the spots on the table that say To Be Determined, staff is in the process
of finding out standard distances for those. Those will be filled in before the next step in the
Amendment process.

***Motion: Initiate an amendment to the City of Elko Master Plan and direct staff to bring
the item back as a resolution and public hearing.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

2. Election of officers, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Pursuant to Section 3-4-3 A. of the City Code, the Planning Commission shall elect a
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary in January every year.

*Commissioner Tera Hooiman nominated Jeff Dalling for Chairman; a vote was taken and
passed.

*Chairman Jeff Dalling nominated Evi Buell for Vice-Chairman; a vote was taken and
passed.

*Chairman Jeff Dalling nominated Tera Hooiman for Secretary; a vote was taken and
passed.

3. Review, consideration, and possible action to develop the Calendar Year 2020
Planning Commission Annual Work Program, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 10

Each year the Planning Commission reviews the Annual Work Program. The work
program gives the Planning Commission direction on various issues to address
throughout the year.

Ms. Laughlin went over the proposed 2020 work program.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to approve the Calendar Year
2020 Planning Commission Annual Work Program.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that the City Council on the 10th accepted Ian Montgomery’s
resignation. The vacancy has been advertised for three week, and there were two
applicants. City Council will be appointing a new member on the 14th. City Council also
amended the Performance Agreement with Humboldt Hills.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that there would be a RAC Meeting on the 23rd, and probably an
RDA meeting after that.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

Ms. Laughlin reminded the Commissioners to get in their Financial Disclosure
Statements.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.



January 7, 2020 Elko City Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 10

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1.  

Created 12/6/2019 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 

12-19, filed by Koinonia Development LP, which would allow for a townhome 

development within a CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning District, and 

matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date: February 4, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Within the CT – Commercial Transitional Zoning 

District, townhouses are allowed with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 12-19 

based on the facts, findings and conditions as presented in Staff Report dated 

January 22, 2020 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated January 22, 2020. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Koinonia Development LP 

207 Brookwood Drive 

Elko, NV 89801 

elkoluke@gmail.com 

johns.koinonia@gmail.com 

 

 





Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE:     January 7, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: February 4, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:   

APPLICATION NUMBER:  Conditional Use Permit 12-19 

APPLICANT:    Koinonia Development, LP 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Development of 44 Townhomes 

RELATED APPLICATIONS: TM 14-19 

  

A Conditional Use Permit for the development of 44 townhomes within the CT – 

Commercial Transitional Zoning District. 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report. 

City of Elko  

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV  89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 



CUP 12-19 
Koinonia Development, LP. 

APN: 001-610-075, 

096,097,098,099  

 

  Page 2 of 7 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-

099 & a portion of 001-610-075 

 

PROPERTY SIZE: --- acres  

 

EXISTING ZONING: CT- Commercial Transitional with approval of 

Rezone 5-19 

 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION:  (MU- NGHBHD) Mixed Use Neighborhood 

 

EXISTING LAND USE:   Undeveloped 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

• North: Residential Mobile Home (RMH) / Developed   

• Northwest: Commercial (C) / Developed 

• South: Public Quasi-Public (PQP) / Developed  

• Northeast:  Residential Mobile Home (RMH) / Developed   

• Southeast: Commercial (C) / Developed 

 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The area is currently undeveloped. 
• The area has slight sloping to the South. 
• The area is accessed from North 5th Street 

 
MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 
 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component 

• City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component 

• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 

• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-9 CC, CT Commercial Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits 

• City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

1. The property is owned by Koinonia Development LP. 

2. The Conditional Use Permit includes all of APN 001-610-096,097,098,& 099 plus a small 

portion of 001-610-075 which they are purchasing from the City of Elko 

3. The area fronts North 5th Street. 



CUP 12-19 
Koinonia Development, LP. 

APN: 001-610-075, 

096,097,098,099  

 

  Page 3 of 7 

4. City utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.  

5. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area. 

6. The application for Conditional Use Permit is running concurrent with an application for a 

zone amendment of the property and the Tentative Map 14-19 that was submitted for the 

Mountain View Townhomes Subdivision.  

 

MASTER PLAN 

 

Land Use 

1. Land Use is shown as Neighborhood Mixed Use.  
2. Supporting zone districts for Neighborhood Mixed Use are Convenience Commercial 

(CC) and Commercial Transitional (CT). 
3. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of 

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups. 
4. Objective 6: Encourage multiple scales of commercial development to serve the needs of 

the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods. 
5. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide 

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.  

 
The proposed conditional use permit is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan  
 

Transportation 
1. The area will be accessed from North 5th Street.    
2. North 5th Street is classified in the Transportation Component as a Minor Arterial. 
3. The property has pedestrian access along North 5th Street. 

 
The proposed conditional use permit is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation 
Component and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.   

 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN 
 

1. The property sits within the 20 year capture zone for the City of Elko wells.  
 
The proposed zone district is in conformance with wellhead protection plan.   
 
ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 

1. The property is not located within the redevelopment area. 
 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

• Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions 

shall apply.  

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 

“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as 

principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses 



CUP 12-19 
Koinonia Development, LP. 

APN: 001-610-075, 

096,097,098,099  

 

  Page 4 of 7 

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 

location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in 

this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council. 

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or 

conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.  

1. Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses 

permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location, 

design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or imposed by 

the Planning Commission or City Council. 

2. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land 

is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason 

of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, 

extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features 

likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The 

planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing 

the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the 

right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she 

so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the 

determination of unsuitability.” 
 
The proposed development is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in 

conformance with this section of code.  

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 

 

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 

in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 

uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall 

be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

 

The proposed development conforms to Section 3-2-4 of the City Code. 

 

SECTION 3-2-9-CC, CT COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS  

 

1. Section 3-2-9(B)(3)-Conditional Uses Permitted- Multiple-family residential 

developments which contain five (5) or more units located on a single lot or parcel; 

townhouse, condominium or attached housing developments. 

2. Section 3-2-9(B)(4) The minimum setback standards shall be the following.  

 



CUP 12-19 
Koinonia Development, LP. 

APN: 001-610-075, 

096,097,098,099  

 

  Page 5 of 7 

• Front Yard: A minimum of 30 feet 

• Interior Side Yard: A minimum setback of zero feet (0') to five and one-half feet 

(51/2') shall be required. Interior side yards which abut any residential district shall 

observe the five and one-half foot (51/2') setback required as part of the R zoning 

district. 

• Exterior Side Yard: A minimum setback of thirty feet (30') shall be required 

• Rear Yard: A minimum setback of ten feet (10') shall be required 

 

Setbacks have been provided on the plan and it does appear that the setbacks have been met. The 

proposed development is required to conform to this section of city code. 3-2-9(B). 

 

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 

 

• It would appear that each townhome has two off street parking stalls provided on their lot 

and additional parking on a parking pad outside their townhome.  There are also 9 guest 

parking stalls provided. 

• Conformance with this section is required 

 

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 

 

General Regulations: 

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses 

only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter, 

other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the 

Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be 

issued. 

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall 

automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the 

permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which 

the permit was issued. 

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only 

to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the 

Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another 

owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all 

zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have 

been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with 

the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well 

as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the 

property owner. 

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel. 

Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the 

event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the 

conditional use permit will be subject to revocation. 

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT 



CUP 12-19 
Koinonia Development, LP. 

APN: 001-610-075, 

096,097,098,099  

 

  Page 6 of 7 

The property is not located within a Special Flood Hazard Area. 

 

FINDINGS 

 

1. The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master 

Plan 

2. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation 

infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan 

3. The site is suitable for the proposed use. 

4. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program. 

5. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

6. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-9 (B) CT Commercial 

Transitional Zoning District and meets the required setbacks. 

7. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of 

the Elko City Code.  

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 12-19 with the following conditions: 

1. The CUP 12-19 shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the submitted 

application conforming to the exhibits as presented. 

2. Landscaping shall be installed and not obstruct the view of oncoming traffic at the 

intersections. Home Owner’s Association is to provide such maintenance and care as is 

required to obtain the effect intended by the original landscape plan for the development. 

3. CUP 12-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after 

commencement of work. 

4. The permit shall be personal to the permittee, Koinonia Development, LP and applicable 

only to the specific use of multiple family residential and to the specific property for which 

it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional 

use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, 

signifying that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with 

the permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable 

and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by 

the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the 

responsibility of the property owner. 

5. Guest parking to be for guest vehicles only, no RV parking allowed on site. 

6. All parking lot lighting is to be shielded or cut-off design. 

7. An illumination schedule is required to ensure lighting is adequate for safety with minimal 

impact to adjacent properties. 

8. There shall not be any placement of any mail gang boxes or kiosks in association with this 

complex placed in the city’s right of way and shall remain internal to the complex 

9. The exterior of the building shall be compatible with surrounding areas and shall be similar 

to what is presented in the application.   



CUP 12-19 
Koinonia Development, LP. 

APN: 001-610-075, 

096,097,098,099  

 

  Page 7 of 7 

10. The common areas are to be maintained in an acceptable manner at all times.  

 
 
 





























Agenda Item # I.A.2. 

Created on 01/21/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review and consideration of Tentative Map 14-19, filed by Koinonia 

Development, LP, for the development of a subdivision entitled Mountain View 

Townhomes involving the proposed division of approximately 3.24 acres of property 

into 44 lots for residential development and 1 common lot within the CT 

(Commercial Transitional) Zoning District, in conjunction with a conditional use 

permit application, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  February 4, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located on the south side of N 5th Street 

at the intersection of Mary Way.  (APNs 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 

001-610-099, and a portion of 001-610-075) 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council conditionally approve 

Tentative Map 14-19 based on facts, findings, and conditions as presented in Staff 

Report dated January 16, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated January 16, 2020 

 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Koinonia Development, LP 

Attn: John Smales 

207 Brookwood Drive 

Elko, NV 89801 

johnskoinonia@gmail.com 

 

High Desert Engineering, LLC 

Attn: Tom Ballew 

tcballew@frontiernet.net 

 





Page 1 of 14

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: January 16, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: February 4, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.2.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Tentative Map 14-19
APPLICANT: Koinonia Development, LP
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Mountain View Townhomes

A Tentative Map for the proposed division of approximately 3.24 acres of property into 44
townhouse lots for residential development and 1 common lot within a CT (Commercial
Transitional) Zoning District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 2 of 14

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-
099, and a portion of 001-610-075 (being purchased
from the City of Elko)

PARCEL SIZE: 3.24 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (CT) Commercial Transitional
Upon approval of a Zoning Amendment

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MU-NGHBHD) Mixed-Use Neighborhood
Upon approval of a Master Plan Amendment

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 Northwest: Commercial (C) / Developed
 Northeast: Residential Mobile Home (RMH) / Developed
 Southwest: Public/Quasi-Public (PQP) / Developed
 Southeast: Commercial (C) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped commercial parcel.
 The site abuts previous residential development to the northeast, commercial buildings on

the northwest and southeast, and Mountain View Park on the southwest.
 The parcel is generally flat, but has some significant slope in the southwest corner, which

has been incorporated into the tentative map design.
 The property will be accessed by two driveways off of N 5th Street.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-9(B) Commercial Transitional District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback, and

Height
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 3 of 14

 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
 City of Elko Public Ways and Property – Title 9, Chapter 8 Post Construction Runoff

Control and Water Quality Management

BACKGROUND:
1. The property owner and applicant is Koinonia Development, LP.
2. The subdivision is located on APNs 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-

099, and a portion of 001-610-075 (being purchased from the City of Elko).
3. The property is undeveloped.
4. The proposed subdivision consists of 44 townhouse lots and 1 common lot.
5. The total subdivided area is approximately 3.24 acres.
6. The proposed density is 13.58 units per acre.
7. Phasing may be used as part of this subdivision.  If the developer chooses to do phasing,

multiple Final Maps can be submitted.
8. There are no new roads or dedications offered as part of the project.
9. The property is located on the south side of N 5th Street at the intersection of Mary Way.
10. A Stage 1 meeting for the proposed subdivision was held on August 22, 2019.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use:

1. The land use for the four lots adjacent to N 5th Street are shown as Mixed-Use
Neighborhood. The portion of property currently being purchased from the City is
currently Open Space.  A Master Plan Amendment is required to change the Open Space
designation to Mixed-Use Neighborhood so all property is consistent. Mixed-Use
Neighborhood does not have a specific density requirement and is intended, among other
things, for the development of medium to high density residential projects.

2. The zoning for the four lots adjacent to N 5th Street are currently zoned General
Commercial, while the portion of property being purchased from the City of Elko is
currently zoned Public/Quasi-Public. Neither of these zoning categories is listed in the
Master Plan as a corresponding district within the Mixed-Use Neighborhood land use
designation, or allows for townhomes. A Zoning Amendment is required to change the
General Commercial and Public/Quasi-Public zoning to Commercial Transitional.
Commercial Transitional (CT) zoning is listed as a corresponding district for the Mixed-
Use Neighborhood designation in the Master Plan, which also allows for townhomes.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use Component states: “Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors.”

4. Objective 1 under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Promote a diverse
mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age
groups.”

a. Best Practice 1.1 – The proposed subdivision meets several of the methods
described to achieve a diverse mix of housing types in the community.

b. Best Practice 1.3 – The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support
the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in
the neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure.

5. Objective 8 of the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety.”  Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 4 of 14

and no issue with regard to human health and safety.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use component of
the Master Plan upon approval of a Master Plan Amendment and Zoning Amendment as
described above. A condition of approval has been added requiring both of these amendments to
be in effect prior to any construction activity or the recordation of the Final Map, whichever
comes first.

Transportation:

1. The project will be accessed from N 5th Street via two private driveways.
2. N 5th Street is classified as a Minor Arterial road.
3. The interior circulation of the project will be provided by a private driveway.
4. The Master Plan requires Minor Arterial roads to have 80 feet of right-of-way.
5. N 5th Street has 80 feet of right-of-way. No further dedications are required.
6. Upon full buildout, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate approximately 256

additional Average Daily Trips based on 5.81 trips/townhome (ITE Trip Generation, 10th

Edition). This is well below the threshold for a traffic study established in the Master
Plan.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
component of the Master Plan.

ELKO AIRPORT MASTER PLAN:

The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan.

CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE, SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE, AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT – NOVEMBER
2012:

The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land
Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and
Annexation Potential Report – November 2012.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located within the 20-year capture zone for two City of Elko wells.
Development of the site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 5 of 14

SECTION 3-3-5 TENTATIVE MAP STAGE (STAGE II):

Tentative Map Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) – Requires the following findings:

a. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the
disposal of solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or pubic sewage disposal,
and, where applicable, individual systems for sewage disposal.

 The proposed subdivision will be connected to the city’s water supply system,
programmed sewer system, and is required to be in compliance with all applicable
federal, state, and local requirements.

b. The availability of water which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in
quantity for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision.

 The City of Elko Engineering Department is required to model the anticipated
water consumption of the subdivision.  The City of Elko Utility Department will
be required to submit a “Tentative Will-Serve Letter” to the State of Nevada.  The
water modeling requires an update to reflect the increased number of lots.
Current City-wide annual water usage is approximately 50% of the total allocated
water rights.

 City of Elko currently has excess pumping capacity of 3,081 gallons per minute.
Sufficient infrastructure and pumping capacity exists to provide the required
water volume to serve the proposed subdivision and development.

 The Developer will extend properly sized infrastructure as required for
development of the property.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water supply.

c. The availability and accessibility of utilities.
 Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed

development.

d. The availability and accessibility of public services such as schools, police protection,
transportation, recreation, and parks.

 Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

e. Conformity with the zoning ordinance and the City’s Master Plan, except that if any
existing zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the City’s Master Plan, the zoning
ordinance takes precedence.

 The land use for the four lots adjacent to N 5th Street are shown as Mixed-Use
Neighborhood.  The portion of property currently being purchased from the City
is currently Open Space.  A Master Plan Amendment is required to change the
Open Space designation to Mixed-Use Neighborhood so all property is consistent.

 The zoning for the four lots adjacent to N 5th Street are currently zoned General
Commercial, while the portion of property being purchased from the City of Elko
is currently zoned Public/Quasi-Public. Neither of these zoning categories is



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 6 of 14

listed in the Master Plan as a corresponding district within the Mixed-Use
Neighborhood land use designation, or allows for townhomes. A Zoning
Amendment is required to change the General Commercial and Public/Quasi-
Public zoning to Commercial Transitional.  Commercial Transitional (CT) zoning
is listed as a corresponding district for the Mixed-Use Neighborhood designation
in the Master Plan, which also allows for townhomes.

 Mixed-Use Neighborhood does not have a specific density requirement and is
intended, among other things, for the development of medium to high density
residential projects.

 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the City’s Master Plan as well
as the Zoning Ordinance.

f. General conformity with the City’s Master Plan of streets and highways.
 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component

of the Master Plan.

g. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new
streets or highways to serve the subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will add approximately 256 Average
Daily Trips to N 5th Street.  Based on the threshold of 1,000 ADT referenced in
the Master Plan, a traffic study is not required with this subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

h. Physical characteristics of the land, such as floodplain, slope, and soil.
 The proposed subdivision and subsequent development of the property is

expected to reduce the potential for erosion in the immediate area.  Development
of the property will not cause unreasonable soil erosion.

 A hydrology report is required with the Final Map and Construction Plan
submittal.

 The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

i. The recommendations and comments and those entities and persons reviewing the
Tentative Map pursuant to this Chapter and NRS 278.330 to 278.3485, inclusive.

 Any comments received from other entities and persons reviewing the Tentative
Map have been incorporated either as revisions to the Map or as conditions of
approval.

j. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the
availability and accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of
fires, including fires in wild lands.

 Fire protection services are available throughout the community.
 A sufficient amount of water exists in this area for use in fire containment.
 The City of Elko Fire Department has reviewed the application materials for

compliance with all fire code requirements.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 7 of 14

k. The submission by the subdivider of an affidavit stating that the subdivider will make
provision for payment of the tax imposed by Chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of Subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if
applicable, by the subdivider or any successor in interest.

 The subdivider/developer is required to comply with all applicable sections of
Chapters 375 and 598 of the NRS.

There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision would
not be in conformance with all applicable provisions.

SECTION 3-3-6 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF TENTATIVE MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Scale – The Tentative Map conforms to the required size and form
specifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision name, location, and section/township/range, with bearing to a

section corner or quarter-section corner, is shown.
2. The name, address, email, and telephone number of the subdivider is shown.
3. The engineer’s name, address, and telephone number are shown.
4. The scale is shown on all sheets.
5. The north arrow is shown on all sheets.
6. The date of initial preparation and dates of any subsequent revisions are shown.
7. A location map is provided.
8. A legal description is provided.

C. Physical Conditions
1. The existing topography of the site is shown.
2. Existing drainage conditions are shown on the Tentative Map.
3. There are no Special Flood Hazards within the proposed subdivision.
4. All roadways, easements, and corporate limits are shown within and adjacent to

the subdivision.
5. Dimensions of all subdivision boundaries are shown on the Tentative Map.
6. Gross and net acreage of the subdivision is shown.

D. Recorded Map Information:
1. Any previously recorded maps for adjacent properties is labeled on the Tentative

Map.
E. Existing Zoning:

1. The zoning is shown for the subject property.  Zoning classifications for adjacent
properties are also shown on the Tentative Map.

F. Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data:
1. The proposed interior driveway layout is shown. None of the streets are named or

proposed for dedication.  The grades of the proposed streets are shown on the
grading plan.  The continuation of roadways is not required of the proposed
subdivision.

2. The lot layout with consecutively numbered lots is shown.  The area and
dimensions for each lot are shown, as well as the total number of lots.

3. Typical easements will be required along all lot lines.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 8 of 14

4. No street dedications are proposed.
5. A Conditional Use Permit is required to allow for the use of townhouses in the

Tourist Commercial zoning.  This application has been submitted and is being
processed by the Planning Department.

G. Proposed Deed Restrictions:
1. No proposed CC&R’s for the subdivision have been submitted. A condition of

approval has been added requiring submittal to the City prior to recordation of the
Final Map.

H. Preliminary Grading Plan:
1. A grading plan has been provided. The areas of cut and fill are shown on the

plan.
I. NPDES Permit Compliance:

1. The subdivider will be required to comply with the City of Elko’s storm water
regulations.

J. Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements:
1. The proposed sewage disposal infrastructure connecting to the City’s

infrastructure is shown on the utility plan.
2. The proposed water supply infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure is

shown on the utility plan.
3. The Tentative Map shows storm water infrastructure.  A hydrology report will be

required with the Final Map and Construction Plan submittal.
4. Utilities in addition to City utilities must be provided with construction plans

required for Final Map submittal.
5. The City will not require a traffic impact study for the proposed subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

A. Conformance with Master Plan: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Master Plan objectives for density and applicable zoning as discussed in detail above.

B. Public Facility Sites: No public facility sites are proposed for dedication.
C. Land Suitability: The area proposed for subdivision is suitable for the proposed

development based on the findings in this report.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-10 STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance with Plan: The proposed subdivision utilizes an existing section of N 5th

Street for access.
B. Layout: Street continuation through the proposed subdivision is not required.
C. Extensions: No extensions are required as part of the proposed subdivision.
D. Arrangement of Residential Streets: The arrangement of streets within the subdivision

prevents outside traffic from utilizing the neighborhood for cut-through traffic.
E. Protection of Residential Properties: There are no lots that have frontage or access from

arterial streets. All lots will front onto the private driveway running through the site.
F. Parallel Streets: Consideration of street location is not required.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 9 of 14

G. Topography: The residential driveway has been designated to address the topography of
the area.

H. Alleys: No alleys are proposed.
I. Half-Streets: There are no half-streets proposed.
J. Dead-End Streets: There are no dead-end streets proposed. The driveway is designed to

allow for appropriate turnaround areas for traffic, as well as fire trucks.
K. Intersection Design: The proposed intersections with N 5th Street are code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-11 STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right-of-Way Widths: N 5th Street currently consists of the required 80 feet of
right-of-way.  No new streets are proposed.

B. Street Grades: The proposed street grades are code compliant.
C. Vertical Curves: Any vertical curves are code compliant.
D. Horizontal Alignment: The horizontal alignment of the driveway and intersection are

code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-12 BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length of Blocks: The block design does not exceed the maximum length of a
block and maximizes block length.

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrian ways: The proposed sidewalks are code compliant.  No other
pedestrian ways are proposed.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-13 LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth, and Area: The lots are in conformance with the specifications
stipulated for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5.

B. Building Setback: The proposed subdivision, when developed, can meet setback
requirements as stipulated in Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

C. Side Lot Lines: The side lot lines are generally at right angles to the interior driveway.
D. Accessibility: The development abuts a public street. All residents will have access to N

5th Street.
E. Prohibitions: No units shall have direct access to N 5th Street.  All access is to be through

the proposed driveway.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 10 of 14

SECTION 3-3-14 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements: The applicant is proposing a new public access, utility, and drainage
easement to run under the driveway parallel with N 5th Street. Overhead utilities are not
allowed within the subdivision.

B. Underground Utilities: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.  The
utility companies, at their discretion, may request a wider easement where needed.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.
D. Public Drainage Easement: The applicant is proposing a new public access, utility, and

drainage easement to run under the driveway parallel with N 5th Street.
E. Easement Land Not Considered and Considered in Minimum Lot Area Calculation: All

calculations appear to be correct.
F. Lots Backing Onto Arterial Streets: There are no lots proposed which require residents to

back onto an arterial street.
G. Water and Sewer Lines: The utilities are shown in the streets, within existing side or rear

easements, and in the proposed driveway access. Sanitary sewer will tie into the existing
city infrastructure near the southeast corner of the property.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-15 STREET NAMING:

No new streets are proposed as part of this project.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

SECTIONS 3-3-16 STREET LIGHT DESIGN STANDARDS:

Conformance is required with the submittal of construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-17 through 3-3-22 (inclusive):

All referenced sections are applicable to Final Map submission, approval, and construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-23 PARK LAND DEDICATIONS:

There is no offer of dedication for park lands.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions.  The following use restrictions shall
apply:

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as “principal uses
permitted” in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall
be prohibited as principal uses.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 11 of 14

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

Section 3-2-3(D) states that: “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography,
low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the
health, safety, and general welfare of the community.  The planning commission, in applying the
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are
based.  The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to
the city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify, or
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity to District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this
title.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-9(B) CT – COMMERCIAL TRANSITIONAL:

Section 3-2-9(B)(3) Conditional Uses Permitted:

1. Churches, church facility complexes and places of religious worship.
2. Convalescent hospitals, sanatoriums, nursing homes, homes for the aged.
3. Funeral homes and mortuaries.
4. Multiple-family residential developments which contain five (5) or more units located on

a single lot or parcel; townhouse, condominium, or attached housing developments.
5. Restaurants, sandwich and beverage shops, delicatessens.
6. Theater, indoor.
7. Similar uses determined to be functionally comparable to conditional permitted uses in

this zone.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-9(B)(3).
Conformance with Section 3-2-9(B) is required as the subdivision develops.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 12 of 14

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS AREA, SETBACKS, AND
HEIGHT:

1. Lot areas are shown.
2. Lot dimensions are shown. The lot dimensions are in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G)

of City code.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
code.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING, AND LOADING:

1. N 5th Street is designated as a Minor Arterial in the Master Plan.  No new streets are
being proposed as part of the proposal.

2. The proposed lots are large enough to develop the required off-street parking.  Each
townhouse unit will include a two-car garage within the individual lots.  Additional guest
parking will be provided in the common lot owned and maintained by the Homeowner’s
Association.

3. The southern access driveway is lined up with the existing intersection of N 5th Street and
Tasha Way.  The northern access driveway is located approximately half way between
the intersections of Mary Way and Copper Street.  The Master Plan requires that
driveways and intersections on Minor Arterial roads have a minimum separation of 250
feet.  The proposed driveway is more than 250 feet from the closest intersection and
conforms with both Master Plan and zoning requirements.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17 of City code.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT:

The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.

TITLE 9, CHAPTER 8 POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER
QUALTIY MANAGEMENT:

Final design of the subdivision is required to conform to the requirements of this title.  The
Tentative Map storm drain infrastructure is shown through the area.

OTHER:

The following permits will be required for the project:

1. State storm water general permit: Required submittals to the City of Elko are a plan view
showing the storm water controls, a copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) and a copy of the certified confirmation letter from the Nevada Department of
Environmental Protection.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 13 of 14

2. A Surface Area Disturbance (SAD) is required if the disturbed area is equal to or greater
than five (5) acres.  A copy of the SAD permit is required to be submitted to the City of
Elko.

3. A street cut permit from the City of Elko.
4. A grading permit from the City of Elko.
5. All other applicable permits and fees required by the City of Elko.
6. The City of Elko also requires submittal of the plans to the individual utility companies

before permits will be issued for the project.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with both the Land Use
and Transportation components of the Master Plan as previously discussed in this report.

2. The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master
Plan; the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary
Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012; the Wellhead Protection Program; or applicable sections of the Elko
City Code.

3. The proposed subdivision complies with Section 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) as discussed in this
report and as required by Section 278.349(3) of the Nevada Revised Statutes.

4. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. Therefore, there is no
conflict with the Redevelopment Plan.

5. A Zoning Amendment is required for the proposed subdivision as previously discussed in
this report.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

Development Department:

1. The associated Master Plan Amendment and Zoning Amendment must be approved and
in effect prior to application submittal of the Final Map.

2. Conditional Use Permit 12-19 must be approved and all conditions met.

3. A copy of the CC&Rs must be submitted to the City of Elko Development Department
prior to recordation of the Final Map.

4. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

5. Tentative Map approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with
preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.



Tentative Map 14-19
Mountain View Townhomes

Page 14 of 14

6. The Tentative Map must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection prior to submitting for Final Map approval by the City of Elko.

7. Construction plans must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection prior to issuance of a grading permit.

8. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements.

9. The applicant must submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4) years
in accordance with NRS.360(1)(a).  Approval of the Tentative Map will automatically
lapse at that time.

10. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.

11. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal.

12. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

13. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City
code.

14. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to Serve letter upon approval of the Tentative
Map by the City Council.

15. Obtain an easement for any off-site grading prior to issuance of a grading permit.

















































































































































































Agenda Item # I.A.3.  

Created on 01/21/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review and consideration of Tentative Map 16-19, filed by Bailey & 

Associates, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Ruby Mountain 

Peaks involving the proposed division of approximately 10 acres of property into 45 

lots for residential development and 1 remainder lot within the R1 (Single-Family 

Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  February 4, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located on the east side of Jennings Way 

between Mountain City Highway and Bluffs Avenue.  (APN 001-01A-014) 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council conditionally approve 

Tentative Map 16-19 based on facts, findings, and conditions as presented in Staff 

Report dated January 17, 2020. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated January 17, 2020 

 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Bailey & Associates, LLC 

Attn: Jon Bailey 

780 W. Silver Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

jbaileype@gmail.com 

 

Summit Engineering 

Attn: Nitin Bhakta 

1150 Lamoille Highway 

Elko, NV 89801 

nitin@summitnv.com 

 

 





Page 1 of 14

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: January 17, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: February 4, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.3.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Tentative Map 16-19
APPLICANT: Bailey & Associates, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Ruby Mountain Peaks

A Tentative Map for the proposed division of approximately 10 acres of property into 45
lots for residential development and 1 remainder lot within a R1 (Single-Family
Residential) Zoning District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in
this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 2 of 14

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-01A-014

PARCEL SIZE: 10 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density
Upon approval of a Master Plan Amendment

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North: Single-Family Residential (R1) / Developed
 South: General Commercial (C) / Developed
 East: General Commercial (C) / Vacant
 West: Single-Family Residential (R1) / Developed

Industrial Commercial (IC) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The site abuts previous residential development to the north and northeast, developed

commercial property to the south, vacant commercial property to the west, and developed
industrial/commercial property to the southeast.

 The parcel slopes down to Mountain City Highway.  The slope has been incorporated
into the tentative map design where possible, but a large amount of grading will be
required.

 The property will be accessed by two driveways off of Bluffs Avenue.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(E) Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential

District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback, and

Height



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 3 of 14

 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
 City of Elko Public Ways and Property – Title 9, Chapter 8 Post Construction Runoff

Control and Water Quality Management

BACKGROUND:
1. The property owner and applicant is Bailey & Associates, LLC.
2. The subdivision is located on APN 001-01A-014.
3. The property is undeveloped.
4. The proposed subdivision consists of 45 residential lots and 1 remainder lot to be

dedicated to the City of Elko as a utility easement.
5. The total subdivided area is approximately 10 acres.
6. The proposed density is 4.5 units per acre.
7. No phasing is proposed as part of this subdivision.
8. There are 2 new dedicated roadways offered as part of the project.
9. The property is located on the east side of Jennings Way between Mountain City

Highway and Bluffs Avenue.
10. A Stage 1 meeting for the proposed subdivision was held on September 12, 2019.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use:

1. The land use for the parcel is shown as Highway Commercial. A Master Plan
Amendment is required to change this designation to Residential Medium Density to
create consistency between the Master Plan and the zoning designation. Residential
Medium Density is intended for residential development at a density between four and
eight units per acre.  The proposed subdivision consists of a density of 4.5 units per acre
and does conform with this aspect of the Master Plan.

2. The zoning for the parcel is shown as Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential,
which is not listed in the Master Plan as a corresponding district within the Highway
Commercial land use designation. While this residential designation allows for the
proposed development, it is in conflict with the Master Plan. In an effort to clean up this
inconsistency, a Master Plan Amendment has been initiated by staff as described above.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use Component states: “Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors.”

4. Objective 1 under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Promote a diverse
mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age
groups.”

a. Best Practice 1.1 – The proposed subdivision meets several of the methods
described to achieve a diverse mix of housing types in the community.

b. Best Practice 1.3 – The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support
the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in
the neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure.

5. Objective 8 of the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety.”  Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems
and no issue with regard to human health and safety.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 4 of 14

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use component of
the Master Plan upon approval of a Master Plan Amendment as described above. A condition of
approval has been added requiring this amendment to be in effect prior to any construction
activity or the recordation of the Final Map, whichever comes first.

Transportation:

1. The project will be accessed from Bluffs Avenue.
2. Bluffs Avenue is classified as a Residential Collector street.
3. The interior circulation of the project will be provided by two new roads to be dedicated

to the City of Elko.
4. The Master Plan requires Residential Collector streets to have 60 feet of right-of-way.
5. Bluffs Avenue has 60 feet of right-of-way. No further dedications are required.
6. Upon full buildout, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate approximately 428

additional Average Daily Trips based on 9.52 trips/single-family unit (ITE Trip
Generation, 10th Edition). This is well below the threshold for a traffic study established
in the Master Plan.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
component of the Master Plan.

ELKO AIRPORT MASTER PLAN:

The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan.

CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE, SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE, AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT – NOVEMBER
2012:

The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land
Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and
Annexation Potential Report – November 2012.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is not located within any capture zone for City of Elko wells.  Development of the
site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street drainage will be
directed to a storm sewer system.

SECTION 3-3-5 TENTATIVE MAP STAGE (STAGE II):

Tentative Map Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) – Requires the following findings:

a. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the
disposal of solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or pubic sewage disposal,
and, where applicable, individual systems for sewage disposal.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 5 of 14

 The proposed subdivision will be connected to the city’s water supply system,
programmed sewer system, and is required to be in compliance with all applicable
federal, state, and local requirements.

b. The availability of water which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in
quantity for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision.

 The City of Elko Engineering Department is required to model the anticipated
water consumption of the subdivision.  The City of Elko Utility Department will
be required to submit a “Tentative Will-Serve Letter” to the State of Nevada.  The
water modeling requires an update to reflect the increased number of lots.
Current City-wide annual water usage is approximately 50% of the total allocated
water rights.

 City of Elko currently has excess pumping capacity of 3,081 gallons per minute.
Sufficient infrastructure and pumping capacity exists to provide the required
water volume to serve the proposed subdivision and development.

 The Developer will extend properly sized infrastructure as required for
development of the property.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water supply.

c. The availability and accessibility of utilities.
 Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed

development.

d. The availability and accessibility of public services such as schools, police protection,
transportation, recreation, and parks.

 Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

e. Conformity with the zoning ordinance and the City’s Master Plan, except that if any
existing zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the City’s Master Plan, the zoning
ordinance takes precedence.

 The land use for the parcel is shown as Highway Commercial.  A Master Plan
Amendment is required to change this designation to Residential Medium Density
to create consistency between the Master Plan and the zoning designation.

 The zoning for the parcel is shown as Single-Family and Multiple-Family
Residential, which is not listed in the Master Plan as a corresponding district
within the Highway Commercial land use designation.  While this residential
designation allows for the proposed development, it is in conflict with the Master
Plan.  In an effort to clean up this inconsistency, a Master Plan Amendment has
been initiated by staff as described above.

 Residential Medium Density is intended for residential development at a density
between four and eight units per acre.  The proposed subdivision consists of a
density of 4.5 units per acre and does conform with this aspect of the Master Plan.

 The proposed subdivision is otherwise in conformance with the City’s Master
Plan as well as the Zoning Ordinance.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 6 of 14

f. General conformity with the City’s Master Plan of streets and highways.
 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component

of the Master Plan.

g. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new
streets or highways to serve the subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will add approximately 428 Average
Daily Trips to Bluffs Avenue.  Based on the threshold of 1,000 ADT referenced in
the Master Plan, a traffic study is not required with this subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

h. Physical characteristics of the land, such as floodplain, slope, and soil.
 The proposed subdivision and subsequent development of the property is

expected to reduce the potential for erosion in the immediate area.  Development
of the property will not cause unreasonable soil erosion.

 A hydrology report is required with the Final Map and Construction Plan
submittal.

 The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

i. The recommendations and comments and those entities and persons reviewing the
Tentative Map pursuant to this Chapter and NRS 278.330 to 278.3485, inclusive.

 Any comments received from other entities and persons reviewing the Tentative
Map have been incorporated either as revisions to the Map or as conditions of
approval.

j. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the
availability and accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of
fires, including fires in wild lands.

 Fire protection services are available throughout the community.
 A sufficient amount of water exists in this area for use in fire containment.
 The City of Elko Fire Department has reviewed the application materials for

compliance with all fire code requirements.

k. The submission by the subdivider of an affidavit stating that the subdivider will make
provision for payment of the tax imposed by Chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of Subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if
applicable, by the subdivider or any successor in interest.

 The subdivider/developer is required to comply with all applicable sections of
Chapters 375 and 598 of the NRS.

There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision would
not be in conformance with all applicable provisions.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 7 of 14

SECTION 3-3-6 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF TENTATIVE MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Scale – The Tentative Map conforms to the required size and form
specifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision name, location, and section/township/range, with bearing to a

section corner or quarter-section corner, is shown.
2. The name, address, email, and telephone number of the subdivider is shown.
3. The engineer’s name, address, and telephone number are shown.
4. The scale is shown on all sheets.
5. The north arrow is shown on all sheets.
6. The date of initial preparation and dates of any subsequent revisions are shown.
7. A location map is provided.
8. A legal description is provided.

C. Physical Conditions
1. The existing topography of the site is shown.
2. Existing drainage conditions are shown on the Tentative Map.
3. There are no Special Flood Hazards within the proposed subdivision.
4. All roadways, easements, and corporate limits are shown within and adjacent to

the subdivision.
5. Dimensions of all subdivision boundaries are shown on the Tentative Map.
6. Gross and net acreage of the subdivision is shown.

D. Recorded Map Information:
1. Any previously recorded maps for adjacent properties are labeled on the Tentative

Map.
E. Existing Zoning:

1. The zoning is shown for the subject property.  Zoning classifications for adjacent
properties are also shown on the Tentative Map.

F. Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data:
1. The proposed interior street layout is shown. All of the streets are named and

proposed for dedication.  The grades of the proposed streets are shown on the
grading plan.  The continuation of roadways is not required of the proposed
subdivision.

2. The lot layout with consecutively numbered lots is shown.  The area and
dimensions for each lot are shown, as well as the total number of lots.

3. Typical easements will be required along all lot lines.
4. Street dedications are proposed for the two new streets (Liberty Peak Street and

Snow Lake Circle).
5. Single-family residential units are allowed in the Single-Family and Multiple-

Family Residential zoning.
G. Proposed Deed Restrictions:

1. No proposed CC&R’s for the subdivision have been submitted.
H. Preliminary Grading Plan:

1. A grading plan has been provided. The cut and fill amounts are shown on a
separate document.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 8 of 14

I. NPDES Permit Compliance:
1. The subdivider will be required to comply with the City of Elko’s storm water

regulations.
J. Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements:

1. The proposed sewage disposal infrastructure connecting to the City’s
infrastructure is shown on the utility plan.

2. The proposed water supply infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure is
shown on the utility plan.

3. The Tentative Map shows storm water infrastructure.  A hydrology report will be
required with the Final Map and Construction Plan submittal.

4. Utilities in addition to City utilities must be provided with construction plans
required for Final Map submittal.

5. The City will not require a traffic impact study for the proposed subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

A. Conformance with Master Plan: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Master Plan objectives for density and applicable zoning as discussed in detail above.

B. Public Facility Sites: No public facility sites are proposed for dedication.
C. Land Suitability: The area proposed for subdivision is suitable for the proposed

development based on the findings in this report.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-10 STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance with Plan: The proposed subdivision utilizes an existing section of Bluffs
Avenue for access.

B. Layout: Street continuation through the proposed subdivision is not required.
C. Extensions: No extensions are required as part of the proposed subdivision. However,

improvements will be required to Bluffs Avenue in the form of curb, gutter, and
sidewalk.

D. Arrangement of Residential Streets: The arrangement of streets within the subdivision
prevents outside traffic from utilizing the neighborhood for cut-through traffic.

E. Protection of Residential Properties: There are no lots that have frontage or access from
arterial streets. Bluffs Avenue is a Residential Collector street.  The subdivision has been
designed so that all lots will front onto interior streets running through the site. A note is
included on the map, and a condition of approval has been added, prohibiting lots to face
on either Bluffs Avenue, Jennings Way, or Mountain City Highway.

F. Parallel Streets: Consideration of street location is not required.
G. Topography: The proposed streets have been designated to address the topography of the

area.
H. Alleys: No alleys are proposed.
I. Half-Streets: There are no half-streets proposed.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 9 of 14

J. Dead-End Streets: There are no dead-end streets proposed. The streets are designed to
allow for appropriate turning movements for traffic, as well as fire trucks.

K. Intersection Design: The proposed intersections with Bluffs Avenue are code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-11 STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right-of-Way Widths: Bluffs Avenue currently consists of the required 60 feet
of right-of-way. All proposed streets are shown with the required 50 feet of right-of-way.

B. Street Grades: The proposed street grades are code compliant.
C. Vertical Curves: Any vertical curves are code compliant.
D. Horizontal Alignment: The horizontal alignment of the streets and intersections are code

compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-12 BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length of Blocks: The block design does not exceed the maximum length of a
block and maximizes block length.

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrian ways: The proposed sidewalks are code compliant.  No other
pedestrian ways are proposed.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-13 LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth, and Area: The lots are in conformance with the specifications
stipulated for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5 with the exception of Lots 18, 19, 25,
and 26.  These lots are located on the outside curve of 90 degree turns and have short
front lot widths.  A modification of standards is required to make these lots conform.

B. Building Setback: The proposed subdivision, when developed, can meet setback
requirements as stipulated in Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

C. Side Lot Lines: The side lot lines are generally at right angles to the proposed streets.
D. Accessibility: The development abuts a public street. All residents will have access to

Bluffs Avenue.
E. Prohibitions: No units shall have direct access to Bluffs Avenue, Jennings Way, or

Mountain City Highway.  All access is to be through the two proposed intersections on
Bluffs Avenue.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the needed
modification of standards.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 10 of 14

SECTION 3-3-14 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements: The applicant is proposing the typical utility and drainage easements
along property lines on individual parcels. Parcel A, located on the south side of the
project adjacent to Mountain City Highway, is a proposed utility easement to be
dedicated to the City of Elko. Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.

B. Underground Utilities: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.  The
utility companies, at their discretion, may request a wider easement where needed.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.
D. Public Drainage Easement: The applicant is proposing the typical utility and drainage

easements along property lines on individual parcels.
E. Easement Land Not Considered and Considered in Minimum Lot Area Calculation: All

calculations appear to be correct.
F. Lots Backing Onto Arterial Streets: There are no lots proposed which require residents to

back onto an arterial street. A note on the map and a condition of approval found below
require that all lots face the interior streets.

G. Water and Sewer Lines: The utilities are shown in the existing exterior streets, within
proposed side or rear easements, and in the proposed interior streets. Sanitary sewer will
tie into the existing city infrastructure near the southeast corner of the property.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-15 STREET NAMING:

The subdivider has proposed two new street names (Liberty Peak Street and Snow Lake Circle).

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

SECTIONS 3-3-16 STREET LIGHT DESIGN STANDARDS:

Conformance is required with the submittal of construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-17 through 3-3-22 (inclusive):

All referenced sections are applicable to Final Map submission, approval, and construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-23 PARK LAND DEDICATIONS:

There is no offer of dedication for park lands.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions.  The following use restrictions shall
apply:



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 11 of 14

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as “principal uses
permitted” in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall
be prohibited as principal uses.

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

Section 3-2-3(D) states that: “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography,
low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the
health, safety, and general welfare of the community.  The planning commission, in applying the
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are
based.  The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to
the city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify, or
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity to District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this
title.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-5(E) R SINGLE-FAMILY AND MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT:

Section 3-2-5(E)(2) Principal Uses Permitted:

1. Adult care facility which serves ten (10) or fewer.
2. Electric power substations, sewer lift stations, and water pump stations wherein service to

district residents requires location within the district.
3. Multiple-family residential units, including a duplex, triplex, or a fourplex located on a

single lot or parcel, provided area and setback requirements are met.
4. One single-family dwelling of a permanent character in a permanent location with each

dwelling unit on its own parcel of land and provided all area and setback requirements
are met.

5. Publicly owned and operated parks and recreation areas and centers.
6. Residential facility for groups of ten (10) or fewer.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 12 of 14

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS AREA, SETBACKS, AND
HEIGHT:

1. Lot areas are shown.
2. Lot dimensions are shown. The lots are in conformance with the specifications stipulated

for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5 with the exception of Lots 18, 19, 25, and 26.
These lots are located on the outside curve of 90 degree turns and have short front lot
widths.  A modification of standards is required to make these lots conform.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
code with the required modification of standards.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING, AND LOADING:

1. Bluffs Avenue is classified as a Residential Collector street.  The interior circulation of
the project will be provided by two new roads to be dedicated to the City of Elko.

2. The proposed lots are large enough to develop the required off-street parking.  Each unit
will include a two-car garage within the individual lots.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17 of City code.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT:

The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.

TITLE 9, CHAPTER 8 POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER
QUALTIY MANAGEMENT:

Final design of the subdivision is required to conform to the requirements of this title.  The
Tentative Map storm drain infrastructure is shown through the area.

OTHER:

The following permits will be required for the project:

1. State storm water general permit: Required submittals to the City of Elko are a plan view
showing the storm water controls, a copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) and a copy of the certified confirmation letter from the Nevada Department of
Environmental Protection.

2. A Surface Area Disturbance (SAD) is required if the disturbed area is equal to or greater
than five (5) acres.  A copy of the SAD permit is required to be submitted to the City of
Elko.



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 13 of 14

3. A street cut permit from the City of Elko.
4. A grading permit from the City of Elko.
5. All other applicable permits and fees required by the City of Elko.
6. The City of Elko also requires submittal of the plans to the individual utility companies

before permits will be issued for the project.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with both the Land Use
and Transportation components of the Master Plan as previously discussed in this report.

2. The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master
Plan; the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary
Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012; the Wellhead Protection Program; or applicable sections of the Elko
City Code.

3. The proposed subdivision complies with Section 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) as discussed in this
report and as required by Section 278.349(3) of the Nevada Revised Statutes.

4. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. Therefore, there is no
conflict with the Redevelopment Plan.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

Development Department:

1. The associated Master Plan Amendment must be approved and in effect prior to
application submittal of the Final Map.

2. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

3. Tentative Map approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with
preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.

4. The Tentative Map must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection prior to submitting for Final Map approval by the City of Elko.

5. Construction plans must be approved by the Nevada Department of Environmental
Protection prior to issuance of a grading permit.

6. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements.

7. The applicant must submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4) years
in accordance with NRS.360(1)(a).  Approval of the Tentative Map will automatically



Tentative Map 16-19
Ruby Mountain Peaks

Page 14 of 14

lapse at that time.

8. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.

9. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal. This report will need to be
reviewed and approved by both the City of Elko and NDOT.

10. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

11. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City
code.

12. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to Serve letter upon approval of the Tentative
Map by the City Council.

13. A modification from standards be approved by City Council for Lot 18, 19, 25, and 26 to
allow for shorter-than-required front lots widths.

14. No lots are allowed to face Bluffs Avenue, Jennings Way, or Mountain City Highway.

Planning Department:

1. A modification from standards be approved by City Council for Lot 3,4,5,6,7,8, and 9 to
allow single family residences on double frontage lots not abutting an arterial street.





































 
 
 
 

  
HYDROLOGY REPORT 

FOR 
RUBY MOUNTAIN PEAKS 

 SUBDIVISION 
ELKO, NEVADA 

 
 
 
     

Prepared for: 
 

BAILEY AND ASOCIATES LLC. 
780 WEST SILVER STREET 

ELKO, NV 89801 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUMMIT ENGINEERING CORPORATION 

1150 LAMOILLE HIGHWAY 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8058 
 
 
 
 

JOB # 3-82500 
 
 
 
 

DECEMBER 2019



 I 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Introduction...................................................................................................................................... 1 
Hydrology Methodology ................................................................................................................. 4 
Existing Hydrology .......................................................................................................................... 5 
Proposed Hydrology ........................................................................................................................ 6 
Conclusion ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
 

List of Tables 
Table 1 – Existing 5-Year Runoff .................................................................................................... 5 
Table 2 – Existing 100-Year Runoff ................................................................................................ 5 
Table 3 – Proposed 5-Year Runoff ................................................................................................... 6 
Table 4 – Proposed 100-Year Runoff ............................................................................................... 6 
 
 
Appendix 

• Vicinity Map 
• Site Plan 
• Existing Hydrology Basins Display Map 
• Proposed Hydrology Basins Display Map 
• FEMA Map 
• NOAA Precipitation Estimate 

 
 
 



 1 

INTRODUCTION 
The following report contains the hydrologic analysis for the 45 Unit Ruby Mountain Peaks Subdivision  
located in Elko, Nevada.  The proposed project occupies 10.00-acre site, the site is currently bear with 
predominant sagebrush and native grass cover over the entire existing site. (Refer to Appendix A - Site 
Map).  The proposed site is surrounded by existing subdivision development to the north and east and 
native ground to the south and west of the site.  The project will consist of a 2.10 acres of Right-of-Way 
space offered for dedication and the remainder 7.90 acres to be utilized for residential homes. (refer to 
Appendix for proposed Site Plan). 
 
The site is bound by the following: 
 
 North: Existing subdivide land / residential homes (Existing) 

 South: Existing native land / sagebrush and other native grasses 

 East: Existing subdivide land / residential homes (Existing) 

 West: Existing native land / sagebrush and other native grasses 

 
The site topography is slightly steep with slopes ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% with ground cover consisting 
mostly of bare soil with grasses and shrubbery.  According to the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) Panel Number 32007C5608E effective as of 
9/4/2013, the subject property is outside the 100 year flood zone limits. 
 
The purpose of this report is to analyze the existing and proposed conditions of the subject property based 
on the 5-year and 100-year peak flow events.  The report contains the following sections: (1) 
Methodology, (2) Existing Hydrology, (3) Proposed Hydrology, and (4) Conclusion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

HYDROLOGY METHODOLOGY 
 
The hydrology was determined by using the Rational Method.  The parameters for this method of analysis 
are: 
 1. The Drainage Area 
 2. Time of Concentration 
 3. Runoff Coefficient 
 4. Rainfall Intensity 
 
The time of concentration is calculated based on two equations: 
 
 tc = tI + tt 

 
Where: 

  tt = the travel time in ditch, channel, gutter, storm drain, etc. (ft) 

   
 

Where: 
    L = length of ditch, channel, gutter, etc. 
   V = velocity of flow 
 

and: 
tI = initial overland flow time (ft) 

 

 
Where: 

   L = length of overland flow 
   R = rational coefficient, C5 
   S = average overland slope 
and: 

 

 
Where:   

L = length of basin 
 
 

Peak runoff is calculated using the following equation: 
 Q = C I A 
 
Where: 
 Q = Peak Runoff 
 C = Coefficient of Runoff 
 I = Rainfall Intensity (in/hr) 
 A = Total Area (acres) 

V
Ltt 60

=

3/1

2/1)1.1(8.1
S

LRti
−

=

10
180

+=
Ltc  



 3 

 
Due to short travel times for runoff, on the project site, Rainfall intensity (I) is determined from the time 
of concentration = (10 minutes minimum), and the NOAA Atlas 14, Volume 1 for Elko, Nevada. 
 

For Tc = 10 minutes the rainfall intensities are as follows: 
 

I(5) = 1.57 in/hr 
I(100) = 3.86 in/hr 

 
 

Runoff coefficients, C, were obtained from the Land Development Handbook resulting in a 5-year 
coefficient of 0.35 and a 100-year coefficient of 0.50, for existing conditions (Undeveloped Range) and a 
5-year coefficient of 0.80 and a 100-year coefficient of 0.95for Asphalt surfaces and a 5-year coefficient 
of 0.30 and a 100-year coefficient of 0.50 for post development conditions (Residential / Single Family). 
 

EXISTING HYDROLOGY 
 
For subdivision site in the existing state, the site was analyzed as six (1) on-site existing sub-basins.  The 
rational method analysis was performed on each sub-basin to determine peak runoff. Basin #1 is a 
localized and the runoff will sheet flow and discharge into an existing 36” SD Pipe located at the 
northeast corner of the property.  This storm drain pipe ties into the City of Elko storm drain system. 
 
Table 1 – Existing 5-Year Runoff and Table 2 - Existing 100-Year Runoff show each sub-basin’s peak 
runoff and collection point.  Appendix – Existing Hydrology Basins Display Map shows the existing 
hydrologic sub-basins and rational method information for the site. 
 
 
 

TABLE 1 - EXISTING 5-YEAR RUNOFF 
Sub-Basin Coefficient Intensity (in/hr) Area (Ac) Runoff (cfs) Collection Point 

EX #1 0.40 1.57 10.00 6.30 Ex. 24” SD Pipe 

      
      

TOTAL     10.00 6.30   
 
 
 

TABLE 2 - EXISTING 100-YEAR RUNOFF 
Sub-Basin Coefficient Intensity (in/hr) Area (Ac) Runoff (cfs) Collection Point 

EX #1 0.50 3.86 10.00 19.30 Ex. 24” SD Pipe 

      
      

TOTAL     10.00 19.30   

 
  



 4 

PROPOSED HYDROLOGY 
 
The developed site was analyzed with two (2) on-site sub-basins.  The rational method analysis was 
performed on each sub-basin to determine peak runoff.  Sub-Basin #1 discharges into an existing Catch 
basin on-site, this area consists of all hard surfaces on site which includes asphalt, curb, gutter and 
sidewalk.  Sub-Basin #2 also discharges into an existing catch basin on-site this area consists of all 
residential housing on the site. 
  
Appendix – Proposed Hydrology Basins Display Map shows the proposed hydrologic sub-basins and 
rational method information for the site. 
 

TABLE 3 - PROPOSED 5-YEAR RUNOFF 
Sub-Basin Coefficient Intensity (in/hr) Area (Ac) Runoff (cfs) Collection Point 

P #1 0.95 1.57 2.10 3.13 
New Dual Type 4R 

CATCH BASIN 

P #2 0.45 1.57 7.90 5.58 
New Dual Type 4R 

CATCH BASIN 
      

TOTAL     10.00 8.71   
 

TABLE 4 - PROPOSED 100-YEAR RUNOFF 
Sub-Basin Coefficient Intensity (in/hr) Area (Ac) Runoff (cfs) Collection Point 

P #1 0.95 3.86 2.10 7.70 
New Dual Type 4R 

CATCH BASIN 

P #2 0.47 3.86 7.90 14.35 
New Dual Type 4R 

CATCH BASIN 
      

TOTAL     10.00 22.05   
 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
 
All the existing and proposed runoff drain into the existing 24” Storm Drain pipe located to the south of 
the property.  The existing 24” SD pipe has sufficient capacity to handle the increase in runoff from the 5 
year and the 100-year storm events. 
 
The difference in flows for the 5-year storm event between the existing and proposed conditions is an 
increase of 2.40 cfs and the difference in flows for the 100-year storm event between the existing and 
proposed conditions is an increase of 2.75 cfs.  For a 10-minute time of concentration and 10 minutes to 
drain the site, it is estimated that 2,880 cubic feet of storage is required for a 5 year storm event.  For a 
100-year event it is estimated that 3,300 cubic feet of storage is required. The on-site detention storage 
provided has a capacity of 3,750 cubic feet, the proposed detention basin using 3 - 48” dia. underground 
pipes on the site, this would allow for the peak flow to be detained before entering the existing 24” storm 
drain pipe crossing mountain city highway. A 12” pipe sloping 0.5% grade will allow a controlled outlet 
of storm water as not to increase the new flow into the existing storm drain system. 
 
 
 



USGS The National Map: Orthoimagery. Data refreshed April, 2019.

National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Ü

11
5°

48
'13

.59
"W

 40°50'37.64"N 

115°47'36.14"W
 

40°50'10.42"N 

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or Depth Zone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR
Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mile  Zone X
Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood Hazard Zone X
Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes. Zone X
Area with Flood Risk due to Levee Zone D

NO SCREEN Area of Minimal Flood Hazard Zone X

Area of Undetermined Flood Hazard Zone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer
Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available
No Digital Data Available
Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of 
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below. 
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap 
accuracy standards
The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 12/12/2019 at 1:07:51 PM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.
This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes. 

Legend

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

8

1:6,000

B 20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate 
point selected by the user and does not represent 
an authoritative property location.



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%��&��%�'(�)*�&���%��	����&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� ��+

,-..�./012�345�67089:�35�6:;2<7=�>�?@A-�BCD-E�E/1/<7=�FGH�IJKI>LM�@7N1/<7=�=19:H�?0O75�,:P1Q15�RE.S�@1/</8Q:H�4TUVI>W5�@7=X</8Q:H�K33>ULY3LW�?0:P1/<7=H�?0:P1/<7=�Z2/1/<7=�9:/1Q1/1[H�>T>T�\/SS]�����
	��̂�_̀�a����]]�����
	��b�c�d-F,e�df?CFdFe.eF-,�Bf?gR?,Ch�?EeFi.e?E���j���	��
�k���������	lk�������m	�"k�n�##����m��	�k�o�l�����a������k��	p�����a����k����������#���
k�̀������_��k�q��#�r����#�sk���#	�b����k��	��#���t��k�a�
��	#�t	s�k�r���u���k�c	�  �	�v�����k�����	#�v�	�	�k�n�(q�����q�	�k�r�	����l�p�sk�w����t��
����xyzzk�x�����#�{	��	���	���
	k���#�	��������k�a���#�����!�p�#���|���!������
�#�|�a���!&!�	���#�dB�/1}801;dGEK}12:Q�~7<=/�~;:N<~</1/<7=�\;:�8:=N��:2/<91/:2��</��YT��N7=\<Q:=N:�<=/:;P102�Z<=�<=N�:2��78;[3G8;1/<7= .P:;1X:�;:N8;;:=N:�<=/:;P10�Z�:1;2[3 I > 3T I> >T 3TT ITT >TT 3TTT>K9<= 3U3J�����+���)*� 3U4Y����������� IUTJ���'������� IU>V��������)�� MU4I���)��+�'�� 4UIT������)���� >UTV���'��*��'� JU34�+��'���)'� LUVI�)��'������ YUMI�)���������3TK9<= TUVVV���*�������� 3U3M�����'���)+� 3U>L���������+� 3UYJ���)����''� IUJT����*���)*� MUIT����)�+�+�� MUVJ���*'�)��'� 4UJL����+�'�)�� >UY>����������� LUTY�+�)�����)�3>K9<= TULMI���)�+������� TUY4T���*+�����*� 3UMT��������*'� 3UJI����'������ IU3>���'�����)� IUJ4����+���''� MU3Y������+�++� MUVJ���'��)���� 4UYI����+�'��)� >UVJ���*�������MTK9<= TU4YI���������''+� TUJMI���)�+����)+� TUVLI���'�������� 3UTY����+����+�� 3U4>����������� 3ULV��������+'� IU3>���)+������ IUJT��������'�� MUM3������+�'�� MUY>���)��)�)+�JTK9<= TUMT>����+����+��� TUMY3���������)��� TU>4T���+�����*�)� TUJL4���)�)������� TUVYL���'�������� 3U3T���������)�� 3UMM����)�����)� 3UJ3���������+� IUT>����)����'� IU44���))���+��IK�; TUITT����'�����)�� TUI>>������������� TUMMV����**���+�*� TU43I�����+���)�'� TU>IV���+�����'��� TUJMT���+�������+� TUL4L���)''����*'� TUVV4���'))����*� 3UTY���**����+*� 3UIV���������*)�MK�; TU3>3�����*������� TU3Y3����)�������� TUI4V�����'������� TUIYV����++������� TUML>���������+��� TU44T����+*���)*+� TU>3M�����'���'**� TUJT>���+))������� TUL4>���)+������� TUVLI���'�)������JK�; TUTYY�����'������� TU3IM�����)����+*� TU3>>������������� TU3V4����)*������� TUII>�����*����*'� TUIJT�����+������� TUIYL����+�����'�� TUMMV����'����+��� TUMYL�����*���)��� TU4JT����+*���'���3IK�; TUTJI����)+����*�� TUTLV����'�������� TUTYY�����'�����'� TU33J�����������'� TU34T����������')� TU3JT�����)������� TU3VT����)������)� TUITI����''����+�� TUIMM�����������'� TUI>V�����+�������I4K�; TUTMV�����)����+�� TUT4V����+�����)+� TUTJ3����))����'�� TUTLI����')������� TUTVJ����*������'� TUTYV�����*������� TU33T������������� TU3IM�����������*� TU34T����������)'� TU3>4����������*��IKQ1� TUTII�����������+� TUTIL�����)������� TUTM4������������� TUT4T�����'����++� TUT4V����++����)�� TUT>>����+�����'�� TUTJ3����))����'*� TUTJV����'�����*)� TUTLL����'������)� TUTV>����*+�������MKQ1� TUT3J�����+�����*� TUTIT������������� TUTI>�����������*� TUTIY�����'������� TUTM>������������� TUTMY�����)����+�� TUT44����������+�� TUT4Y����+�����)+� TUT>>����+�����'�� TUTJ3����)�����'*�4KQ1� TUT3M�����������+� TUT3J�����)�����*� TUTIT������������� TUTIM�����������'� TUTIV�����)������� TUTMI�����������)� TUTM>������������� TUTMY�����)����+�� TUT44����������+�� TUT4Y����+�����)+�LKQ1� TUTTV������������� TUT33������������� TUT3M�����������)� TUT3J�����+�����*� TUT3V�����*������� TUTI3������������� TUTIM�����������)� TUTIJ������������� TUTIY�����'������� TUTM3�����������)�3TKQ1� TUTTJ�����'�����*� TUTTV�����*������� TUT3T������������� TUT3I������������� TUT34�����������)� TUT3J�����+�����*� TUT3V�����'������� TUT3Y������������� TUTII�����������+� TUTI4�����������'�ITKQ1� TUTT4�����+�����+� TUTT>�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����'�����*� TUTTL�����*������� TUTTY������������� TUT3T������������� TUT33������������� TUT3I������������� TUT3M�����������)� TUT34�����������'�MTKQ1� TUTTM�����������+� TUTT4�����+�����+� TUTT>�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����)�����'� TUTTL�����'������� TUTTV�����*������� TUTTV������������� TUTTY������������� TUT3T������������� TUT33�������������4>KQ1� TUTTM������������� TUTTM������������� TUTT4�����+�����+� TUTT>�����+�����)� TUTT>�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����'�����*� TUTTL�����'�����*� TUTTV�����*������� TUTTV�����*�������JTKQ1� TUTTI������������� TUTTM������������� TUTTM�����������+� TUTT4�����+�����+� TUTT>�����+�����)� TUTT>�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����'�����*� TUTTL�����'�����*� TUTTL�����'�����������	
�������� �	��	�
�������	��"�	����������p#	���	�p��	����� �	��	�
�����#������ ������#����������	��	��������x�"p	���������	��	������	����	��"�	����#��	���������	��p������� ��	�����
�� ��	�
	���	���#��r�	����p�p�#��������	
�������� �	��	�
��	��"�	��� �������	����������������	���	��	
���	�
	���	���#����##�p	���	�	�������	����	��p���������#	��������	�#��	��p���������)���̂��"�	�������	��p��������	���
�	
s	������������p�p#	�"���"�"���	
����������a���	��"�	������"���p	�����	������
���	�#����#����a����#�	���#	��	��	 	����xyzz�z#����+���
�"	�� ���"��	��� ��"����� v�
s���r��dB�X;1~�<N10



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%��&��%�'(�)*�&���%��	����&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� ��+

,�
-���.��/012�3�045607289077�2:074�;45506<



HANDBOOK OF HYDRAULICS 
 

Values of n to Be Used with the Manning Equation 
 

Surface Best Good Fair Bad 
Uncoated cast-iron pipe 0.012 0.013 0.014 0.015 
Coated cast-iron pipe  0.011 0.012* 0.013*  
Commercial wrought-iron pipe, black.  0.012 0.013 0.014 0.015 
Commercial w-wrought-iron pipe, Galvanized  0.013 0.014 0.015 0.017 
Smooth brass and glass pipe 0.009 0.010 0.011 0.013 
Smooth lockbar and welded "OD" pipe 0.010 0.011* 0.013*  
Riveted and spiral steel pipe  0.013 0.015* 0.017*  
Vitrified sewer pipe 0.010 

0.011 
0. 013* 0.015 0.017 

Common clay drainage tile. 0.011 0.012* 0.014* 0.017 
Glazed brickwork  0.011 0.012 0.013 0.015 
Brick in cement mortar; brick sewers.  0.012 0.013 0.015* 0.017 
Neat cement surfaces  0.010 0.011 0.012 0.013 
Cement mortar surfaces  0.011 0.012 0.013* 0.015 
Concrete pipe 0.012 0.013 0.015* 0.016 
Wood stave pipe  0.010 0.011 0.012 0.013 
Plank Flumes:     
Planed  0.010 0.012* 0.013 0.014 
Unplaned  0.011 0.013* 0.014 0.015 
With battens  0.012 0.015* 0.016  
Concrete-lined channels  0.012 0.014* 0.016 0.018 
Cement-rubble surface  0.017 0.020 0.025 0.030 
Dry-rubble surface  0.025 0.030 0.033 0.035 
Dressed-ashlar surface  0.013 0.014 0.015 0.017 
Semicircular metal flumes, smooth  0.011 0.012 0.013 0.015 
Semicircular metal flumes, corrugated 0.0225 0.025 0.0275 0.030 
Canals and Ditches:     
Earth, straight and uniform  0.017 0.020 0.0225* 0.025 
Rock cuts, smooth and uniform 0.025 0.030 0.033* 0.035 
Rock cuts, jagged and irregular  0.035 0.040 0.045  
Winding sluggish canals  0.0225 0.025* 0.0275 0.030 
Dredged earth channels 0.025 0.0275* 0.030 0.033 
Canals with rough stony beds, weeds     
on earth banks  0.025 0.030 0.035* 0.040 
Earth bottom, rubble sides 0.028 0.030* 0.033* 0.035 
Natural Stream Channels:     
(1) Clean, straight bank, full stage, no     
      Rifts or deep pools 0.025 0.0275 0.030 0.033 
(2) Same as (1), but some weeds and stones 0.030 0.033 0.035 0.040 
 

(3) Winding, some pools and shoals, clean 0.033 0.035 0.040 0.045 
(4) Same as (3), lower stages, more     
      Ineffective slope and sections.  0.040 0.045 0.050 0.055 
(5) Same as (3), some weeds and stones 0.035 0.040 0.045 0.050 
     
(6) Same as, (4), stony sections 0.045 0.050 0.055 0.060 
(7) Sluggish river reaches, rather     
      weeds, or with very deep pools 0.050 0.060 0.070 0.080 
(8) Very weedy reaches 0.075 0.100 0.125 0.150 
 

* Values commonly used in designing. 
 



Land Use 0-2% 2-6% 6%+ 0-2% 2-6% 6%+ 0-2% 2-6% 6% 0-2% 2-6% 6%+

Cultivated Land 0.08a 0.13 0.16 0.11 0.15 0.21 0.14 0.19 0.26 0.18 0.23 0.31

0.14b 0.18 0.22 0.16 0.21 0.28 0.20 0.25 0.34 0.24 0.29 0.41

Pasture 0.12 0.20 0.30 0.18 0.28 0.37 0.24 0.34 0.44 0.30 0.40 0.50

0.15 0.25 0.37 0.23 0.34 0.45 0.30 0.42 0.52 0.37 0.50 0.62

Meadow 0.10 0.16 0.25 0.14 0.22 0.30 0.20 0.28 0.36 0.24 0.30 0.40

0.14 0.22 0.30 0.20 0.28 0.37 0.26 0.35 0.44 0.30 0.40 0.50

Forest 0.05 0.08 0.11 0.08 0.11 0.14 0.10 0.13 0.16 0.12 0.16 0.20

0.08 0.11 0.14 0.10 0.14 0.18 0.12 0.16 0.20 0.15 0.20 0.25

Residential Lot 0.25 0.28 0.31 0.27 0.30 0.35 0.30 0.33 0.38 0.33 0.36 0.42

Size 1/8 acre 0.33 0.37 0.40 0.35 0.39 0.44 0.38 0.42 0.49 0.41 0.45 0.54

Lot Size 1/4 acre 0.22 0.26 0.29 0.24 0.29 0.33 0.27 0.31 0.36 0.30 0.34 0.40

0.30 0.34 0.37 0.33 0.37 0.42 0.36 0.40 0.47 0.38 0.42 0.52

Lot Size 1/3 acre 0.19 0.23 0.26 0.22 0.26 0.30 0.25 0.29 0.34 0.28 0.32 0.39

0.28 0.32 0.35 0.30 0.35 0.39 0.33 0.38 0.45 0.36 0.40 0.50

Lot Size 1/2 acre 0.16 0.20 0.24 0.19 0.23 0.28 0.22 0.27 0.32 0.26 0.30 0.37

0.25 0.29 0.32 0.28 0.32 0.36 0.31 0.35 0.42 0.34 0.38 0.46

Lot Size 1 acre 0.14 0.19 0.22 0.17 0.21 0.26 0.20 0.25 0.31 0.24 0.29 0.35

0.22 0.26 0.29 0.24 0.23 0.34 0.28 0.32 0.40 0.31 0.35 0.46

Industrial 0.67 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.69 0.68 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.69 0.70

0.85 0.85 0.86 0.85 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.86 0.87 0.86 0.86 0.88

Commercial 0.71 0.71 0.72 0.71 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.72

0.88 0.88 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.90 0.89 0.89 0.90

Streets 0.70 0.71 0.72 0.71 0.72 0.74 0.72 0.73 0.76 0.73 0.75 0.78

0.76 0.77 0.79 0.80 0.82 0.84 0.84 0.85 0.89 0.89 0.91 0.95

Open Space 0.05 0.10 0.14 0.08 0.13 0.19 0.12 0.17 0.24 0.16 0.21 0.28

0.11 0.16 0.20 0.14 0.19 0.26 0.18 0.23 0.32 0.22 0.27 0.39

Parking 0.85 0.86 0.87 0.85 0.86 0.87 0.85 0.86 0.87 0.85 0.86 0.87

0.95 0.96 0.97 0.95 0.96 0.97 0.95 0.96 0.97 0.95 0.96 0.97

Source: Kibler, D.F. et.al. 1982. Recommended Jydrologic Procedures for Computing Urban Runoff in Pennsylvania Commonwealth of Pa.

Harrisburg, Pa. Dept. of Environmental Resources.
aRunoff coeficients for storm recurrence intervals less than 25 years
bRunoff coefficients for storm recurrence intervals of 25 years or more

Reference: Land Development Handbook - Planing, Engineering, and Surveying Dewberry & Davis

Runoff Coefficients for the Rational Formula by Hydrologic Soil Group and Slope Range
A B C      D



Culvert Report
Hydraflow Express Extension for Autodesk® AutoCAD® Civil 3D® by Autodesk, Inc. Monday, Jan 13 2020

Circular Culvert

Invert Elev Dn (ft) =  100.00
Pipe Length (ft) =  12.00
Slope (%) =  0.50
Invert Elev Up (ft) =  100.06
Rise (in) =  12.0
Shape =  Circular
Span (in) =  12.0
No. Barrels =  1
n-Value =  0.012
Culvert Type =  Circular Concrete
Culvert Entrance =  Square edge w/headwall (C)
Coeff. K,M,c,Y,k =  0.0098, 2, 0.0398, 0.67, 0.5

Embankment
Top Elevation (ft) =  102.00
Top Width (ft) =  3.00
Crest Width (ft) =  3.00

Calculations
Qmin (cfs) =  3.25
Qmax (cfs) =  3.25
Tailwater Elev (ft) =  (dc+D)/2

Highlighted
Qtotal (cfs) =  3.25
Qpipe (cfs) =  3.25
Qovertop (cfs) =  0.00
Veloc Dn (ft/s) =  4.42
Veloc Up (ft/s) =  5.00
HGL Dn (ft) =  100.89
HGL Up (ft) =  100.83
Hw Elev (ft) =  101.41
Hw/D (ft) =  1.35
Flow Regime =  Inlet Control





























































P
A

R
C

E
L

 
B

 
P

M
 
4

6
2

5
1

5

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
0

1
A

-
1

0

C
H

R
I
S

T
I
A

N
S

E
N

APN 001-01C-089

APN 001-01C-082 APN 001-01C-081 APN 001-01C-074 APN 001-01C-061 APN 001-01C-062 APN 001-01C-063

LOT 101 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-001

SEDIVEC

LOT 102 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-002

GLAXNER

LOT 103 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-003

SANCHEZ

LOT 104 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-004

HENDRIX

C
H

A
 
C

H
E

T
 
I
I
 
L

L
C

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
0

1
A

-
0

0
5

LIBERTY PEAK STREET

S
N

O
W

 
L

A
K

E
 
C

I
R

C
L

E

SNOW LAKE CIRCLE

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 9
LOT 8

LOT 7
LOT 6

LOT 5
LOT 4LOT 3

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 19

LOT 20
LOT 21

LOT 22

LOT 23
LOT 24

LOT 25

LOT 26

LOT 31

LOT 30

LOT 29

LOT 28

LOT 27

LOT 35
LOT 34

LOT 33
LOT 32

LOT 36

LOT 37

LOT 38

LOT 45

LOT 44

LOT 40
LOT 41

LOT 42
LOT 43

LOT 39

NDOT STATE ROUTE 225

(MOUNTAIN CITY HWY)

P
A

R
C

E
L

 
A

H
A

I
L
E

Y
 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
5

7
7

6
6

5
)

C
A

L
L
I
E

 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
5

7
7

6
6

5
)

T
Y

L
E

R
 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
4

1
0

2
6

2
)

BLUFFS AVE

(FORMERALLY BELLINGER AVE

PER SUB 410262)

J
E

N
N

I
N

G
S

 
W

A
Y

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
4

1
0

2
6

2
)

S
N

O
W

 
L

A
K

E
 
C

I
R

C
L

E

3~48" SD PIPE RETENTION

SHEET

JOB NO:

VERT:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

SCALE

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

SU
M
M
ITE

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

T
M

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

P
H

O
N

E
:
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
F

A
X

:
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

4
7

-
8

5
5

9

HORIZ:

OF

N

o

.
15

4

9

4

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

EE
R

-

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.

15
4

9

4

NITIN  I.

BHAKTA

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

T-1 6

NONE

NONE

82500

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

R
U

B
Y

 
M

O
U

N
T

A
I
N

 
P

E
A

K
S

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
I
O

N

T
I
T

L
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A

NIB

NIB

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r
 
1

1
,
 
2

0
1

9
L
:
\
N

d
r
i
v
e
\
D

w
g
s
\
8
2
5
0
0
-
R

u
b
y
-
M

o
u
n
t
a
i
n
-
P

e
a
k
s
-
B

a
i
l
e
y
\
C

I
V

I
L
\
T

E
N

T
A

T
I
V

E
 
P

L
A

T
\
8
2
5
0
0
_
R

M
P

S
_
T

E
N

T
A

T
I
V

E
 
P

L
A

T
.
d
w

g

1
/
2
/
2
0

C
I
T

Y
 
R

E
V

I
S

I
I
O

N
S

N
I
B

N
I
B

SITE PLAN

VICINITY MAP

ENGINEER
OWNER / DEVELOPER

1150 LAMOILLE HIGHWAY

(775) 738 - 8058

ELKO, NEVADA 89801

BAILEY AND ASSOCIATES LLC.

WWW.SUMMITNV.COM

NITIN@SUMMITNV.COM

TENTATIVE MAP FOR

RUBY MOUNTAIN PEAKS

ELKO                   ELKO COUNTY                    NEVADA

SUMMITENGINEERING

CORPORATION

TM

JON BAILEY

780 WEST SILVER STREET

ELKO, NEVADA 89801

H

U

M

B

O

L

D

T

R

I
V

E

R

R
IV

E
R

H
U

M

B
O

L
D

T

SITE

INTERSTATE 80

I

N

T

E

R

S

T

A

T

E

 

8

0

I
N

T

E

R

S

T

A

T

E

 
8

0

N

SUBDIVISION

ATTN: JON BAILEY

           775-385-3659

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

R/WEXISTING(e)

GTV.

I.E.

L.P.

L

L.F.

INT.

H.P.

HORIZ.

H.C.

F.H.

G.B.

G.

FLG.

F

L

F.F.C.

F.G.

F.F.

E.G.

FRONT FACE OF CURB

GATE VALVE

LENGTH

INVERT ELEVATION

INTERSECTION

HORIZONTAL

LINEAL FEET

HIGH POINT

HANDICAPPED

LOW POINT

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

FINISHED FLOOR

FINISHED GRADE

EXISTING GRADE

FLANGE

GAS

FIRE HYDRANT

FLOW LINE

GRADE BREAK

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

TELE.

TYP.

W

V.C.

V.P.I.

TOE

TOP

T.C.

T.B.

STD.

S.D.

T

SHT.

STA.

S.S.

S.W.

S

S.G.

E.

E.C.

EXIST.

E.V.C.

ELEV.

C.R.

DET.

D.I.

CLR

C.P.

C

L

CONST.

CONC.

B.W.

C.B.

B.C.

B.V.C.

B.F.

AGG.

A.C. ASPHALTIC CONCRETE

BEGIN VERTICAL CURVE

BACK OF SIDEWALK

BOTTOM OF FOOTING

END OF VERTICAL CURVE

CLEARANCE

DETAIL

ELEVATION

EXISTING

ELECTRICAL

END OF CURVE

CURB RETURN

DROP INLET

CONCRETE PIPE

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

CONCRETE

CATCH BASIN

CENTERLINE

BEGIN CURVE

CONSTRUCT

AGGREGATE

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

R

R.C.P.

R.P.

RT.

REF.

P.U.E.

Q100

Q10

(R)

P

L

P.R.C.

P.V.C.

P.O.

PCC

PI.

M.D.D

L.P.

P.

LT.

RIGHT OF WAY

VERT. POINT OF INTERSECTION

TELEPHONE

TOP OF CURB

VERTICAL CURVE

TOP OF SLOPE

TOE OF SLOPE

THRUST BLOCK

CURVE DELTA

TYPICAL

WATER

SIDEWALK

SANITARY SEWER

STANDARD

SUBGRADE

TANGENT

STORM DRAIN

SHEET

STATION

SLOPE

POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE

POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE

POINT OF INTERSECTION

REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

100-YEAR STORM FLOW

POINT OF COMPOUND CURV.

PROPERTY LINE

REFERENCE

RADIUS POINT

10-YEAR STORM FLOW

RADIUS

RIGHT

RADIAL

MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY

LOW POINT

PAD ELEVATION

PUSH ON

LEFT

M.H. MANHOLE

BASIS OF ELEVATION

BASIS OF BEARINGS

U.S.C. & G.S. BENCHMARK #S141, DATED 1929

ELVATION REPORTED AS

5183.54' ABOVE SEA LEVEL

IS THE NORTH PROPERTY LINE  OF SAID PARCEL IN SECTION 8 

T. 34 N., R. 55 E., M.D.B. & M. TAKEN AS S 89° 56' 44" E

ABBREVIATIONS

SHEET INDEX

CODES, THE CITY CODES SHALL PREVAIL.

OF CONFLICT BETWEEN ANY PORTION OF THESE PLANS AND CITY

APPLICABLE STATUTES, CITY ORDINANCES, AND CODES. IN THE EVENT

AND GUIDELINES, AND ARE IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH 

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PROCEDURES

THESE PLANS (SHEETS T-1 OF 6 THROUGH D-1 OF 6) HAVE BEEN

ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

SPECIFICATIONS

TELEPHONE

TELEVISION

ELECTRIC

UTILITIES

PROJECT DATA

TOTAL RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA = 2.10 ACRES (91,562 SF)

TOTAL SUBDIVIDED AREA = 10.00 ACRES 

LAND USE CLASSIFICATION

R1 (RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY) 

FLOOD PLAIN:

EASEMENTS:

ALONG THE SIDES AND REAR  LOT LINES AND A 7.50' DRAINAGE

ALL LOTS TO CONTAIN A 5.50' UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

BASED ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR THE

CITY OF ELKO, 32007C5608E, DATED SEPTEMBER 4, 2013

THE ENTIRE SITE LIES OUTSIDE THE 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN

ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION (CURRENT EDITION AND ANY APPURTENANT

SUPPLEMENTS) SPONSORED AND DISTRIBUTED BY RENO, SPARKS,

WASHOE COUNTY, AND THE RECOMMENDATIONS ESTABLISHED BY THE

SOILS INVESTIGATION FOR THIS SITE.

GAS ~  SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

~  NV ENERGY

~  SATVIEW BROADBAND LLC

~  FRONTIER COMMUNICATION

~  CITY OF ELKO

~  CITY OF ELKOSANITARY SEWER

WATER

GARBAGE UTILITIES ~  ELKO SANITATION (CITY LANDFILL)

AND UTILITY EASEMENT ALONG THE CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY

SITE INFO:

BASED UPON THE CITY OF ELKO AND BLM HISTORIC DATA THE

SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS BEEN EXCLUSIVELY USED AS

OPEN RANGE.

TOTAL UNITS = 45 LOTS

LOCATION:

THIS SITE IS LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH

RANGE 55 EAST IN ELKO, NEVADA

ESTIMATED WATER USAGE = 50.40 ACRE FEET PER YEAR

ESTIMATED SEWER CONTRIBUTIONS = 15,750 GALLONS PER DAY

THIS PROPOSED SUBDIVISION IS LOCATED IN SECTION 8, T 34 N, R 55 E. MDB&M.

THE REQUIRED FIRE FLOW FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT WILL BE 

    A MINIMUM OF 1,500 GPM FOR 2 HOURS, FOR RESIDENTIAL 

    TYPE V-B CONSTRUCTION.

T-1 ..... TITLE SHEET

N-1 ..... GENERAL NOTES SHEET

1-2 ..... TENTATIVE PLAT JURAT

2-2 ..... TENTATIVE PLAT MAP

G-1 ..... GRADING PLAN

U-1 ..... UTILITY PLAN

NET AREA ~ (TOTAL AREA - RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA) = 7.90 ACRES 

JBAILEYPE@GMAIL.COM

OFFERED FOR DEDICATION

ELKO, NEVADA

ADJACENT

SOUTH - EXISTING COMMERCIAL PROPERTY - HOME DEPOT

NORTH - EXISTING R1 RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION LOTS

EAST - NORTH HALF EXISTING R1 RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION LOTS

           - SOUTH HALF - EXISTING DEVELOPED COMMERCIAL PROPERTY - STORAGE UNITS

ZONING:

WEST - EXISTING UNDEVELOPED COMMERCIAL PROPERTY

1

1



SHEET

JOB NO:

VERT:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

SCALE

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

SU
M
M
ITE

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

T
M

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

P
H

O
N

E
:
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
F

A
X

:
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

4
7

-
8

5
5

9

HORIZ:

OF

N

o

.
15

4

9

4

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

EE
R

-

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.

15
4

9

4

NITIN  I.

BHAKTA

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

N-1 6

1"=40'

NONE

82500

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

R
U

B
Y

 
M

O
U

N
T

A
I
N

 
P

E
A

K
S

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
I
O

N

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
S

 
S

H
E

E
T

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A

NIB

NIB

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r
 
1

1
,
 
2

0
1

9
L
:
\
N

d
r
i
v
e
\
D

w
g
s
\
8
2
5
0
0
-
R

u
b
y
-
M

o
u
n
t
a
i
n
-
P

e
a
k
s
-
B

a
i
l
e
y
\
C

I
V

I
L
\
2
0
1
9
_
1
1
2
1
B

J
_
B

l
u
f
f
s
_
T

o
p
o
_
C

3
D

1
8
.
d
w

g

LEGEND

T

”

E

SILT FENCE

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION NOTES

SLOPE STABILIZATION

3)

CWM

SWM

RVG

EROSION CONTROL NOTES

LEGEND

SIGNAGE & STRIPING NOTES

GENERAL NOTES

W





U
TI

LI
TY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T 
TO

 B
E 

D
ED

IC
AT

ED



L
A

N
A

E
 
C

O
U

R
T

P
A

R
C

E
L

 
B

 
P

M
 
4

6
2

5
1

5

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
0

1
A

-
1

0

C
H

R
I
S

T
I
A

N
S

E
N

LOT 183 SUB 577665

APN 001-01C-089

SHELDON

LOT 176 SUB 577665

APN 001-01C-082

CERVANTES

LOT 175 SUB 577665

APN 001-01C-081

SNIDER

LOT 168 SUB 577665

APN 001-01C-074

DELAMORA

LOT 165 SUB 565051

APN 001-01C-061

JOGGERST

LOT 166 SUB 565051

APN 001-01C-062

GREENHAW

LOT 167 SUB 565051

APN 001-01C-063

MARIN

LOT 101 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-001

SEDIVEC

LOT 102 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-002

GLAXNER

LOT 103 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-003

SANCHEZ

LOT 104 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-004

HENDRIX

C
H

A
 
C

H
E

T
 
I
I
 
L

L
C

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
0

1
A

-
0

0
5

LIBERTY PEAK STREET

S
N

O
W

 
L
A

K
E

 
C

I
R

C
L
E

SNOW LAKE CIRCLE

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 9
LOT 8

LOT 7
LOT 6

LOT 5
LOT 4LOT 3

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 19

LOT 20
LOT 21

LOT 22
LOT 23

LOT 24

LOT 25

LOT 26

LOT 31

LOT 30

LOT 29

LOT 28

LOT 27

LOT 35
LOT 34

LOT 33
LOT 32

LOT 36

LOT 37

LOT 38

LOT 45

LOT 44

LOT 40
LOT 41

LOT 42
LOT 43

LOT 39

NDOT STATE ROUTE 225

(MOUNTAIN CITY HWY)

P
A

R
C

E
L
 
A

H
A

I
L

E
Y

 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
5

7
7

6
6

5
)

C
A

L
L

I
E

 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
5

7
7

6
6

5
)

T
Y

L
E

R
 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
4

1
0

2
6

2
)

BLUFFS AVE

(FORMERALLY BELLINGER AVE

PER SUB 410262)

J
E

N
N

I
N

G
S

 
W

A
Y

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
4

1
0

2
6

2
)

S
N

O
W

 
L
A

K
E

 
C

I
R

C
L
E

3~48" SD PIPE RETENTION

SHEET

JOB NO:

VERT:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

SCALE

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

SU
M
M
ITE

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

T
M

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

P
H

O
N

E
:
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
F

A
X

:
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

4
7

-
8

5
5

9

HORIZ:

OF

N

o

.
15

4

9

4

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

EE
R

-

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.

15
4

9

4

NITIN  I.

BHAKTA

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

G-1 6

1"=40'

NONE

82500

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

R
U

B
Y

 
M

O
U

N
T

A
I
N

 
P

E
A

K
S

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
I
O

N

G
R

A
D

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A

NIB

NIB

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r
 
1

1
,
 
2

0
1

9
L
:
\
N

d
r
i
v
e
\
D

w
g
s
\
8
2
5
0
0
-
R

u
b
y
-
M

o
u
n
t
a
i
n
-
P

e
a
k
s
-
B

a
i
l
e
y
\
C

I
V

I
L
\
T

E
N

T
A

T
I
V

E
 
P

L
A

T
\
8
2
5
0
0
_
R

M
P

S
_
T

E
N

T
A

T
I
V

E
 
P

L
A

T
.
d
w

g

1
-
1
0
-
2
0

C
I
T

Y
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
 
1
2
/
2
4
/
1
9

N
I
B

N
I
B

NEWCASTLE CIRCLE

TYPICAL STRUCTURAL SECTION

SEWER

WATER

PHONE CABLE

POWER

2

2



8
"
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
-
 
3
4
6
.
0
0

8" WATER - 455.74

1
8
"
 
S

D
 
-
 
4
9
0
.
0
0

8
"
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
-
 
3
3
0
.
0
0

8" SEWER - 105.00
8" SEWER - 285.00

24" SD - 105.00

L
A

N
A

E
 
C

O
U

R
T

P
A

R
C

E
L

 
B

 
P

M
 
4

6
2

5
1

5

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
0

1
A

-
1

0

C
H

R
I
S

T
I
A

N
S

E
N

LOT 183 SUB 577665

APN 001-01C-089

SHELDON

LOT 176 SUB 577665

APN 001-01C-082

CERVANTES

LOT 175 SUB 577665

APN 001-01C-081

SNIDER

LOT 168 SUB 577665

APN 001-01C-074

DELAMORA

LOT 165 SUB 565051

APN 001-01C-061

JOGGERST

LOT 166 SUB 565051

APN 001-01C-062

GREENHAW

LOT 167 SUB 565051

APN 001-01C-063

MARIN

LOT 101 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-001

SEDIVEC

LOT 102 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-002

GLAXNER

LOT 103 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-003

SANCHEZ

LOT 104 SUB 410262

APN 001-01C-004

HENDRIX

C
H

A
 
C

H
E

T
 
I
I
 
L

L
C

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
0

1
A

-
0

0
5

LIBERTY PEAK STREET

S
N

O
W

 
L
A

K
E

 
C

I
R

C
L
E

SNOW LAKE CIRCLE

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 9
LOT 8

LOT 7
LOT 6

LOT 5
LOT 4LOT 3

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 19

LOT 20
LOT 21

LOT 22
LOT 23

LOT 24

LOT 25

LOT 26

LOT 31

LOT 30

LOT 29

LOT 28

LOT 27

LOT 35
LOT 34

LOT 33
LOT 32

LOT 36

LOT 37

LOT 38

LOT 45

LOT 44

LOT 40
LOT 41

LOT 42
LOT 43

LOT 39

NDOT STATE ROUTE 225

(MOUNTAIN CITY HWY)

P
A

R
C

E
L
 
A

H
A

I
L

E
Y

 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
5

7
7

6
6

5
)

C
A

L
L

I
E

 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
5

7
7

6
6

5
)

T
Y

L
E

R
 
C

O
U

R
T

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
4

1
0

2
6

2
)

BLUFFS AVE

(FORMERALLY BELLINGER AVE

PER SUB 410262)

J
E

N
N

I
N

G
S

 
W

A
Y

(
P

E
R

 
S

U
B

 
4

1
0

2
6

2
)

S
N

O
W

 
L
A

K
E

 
C

I
R

C
L
E

8
"
 
W

A
T

E
R

 
-
 
3
7
5
.
0
0

8" WATER - 340.00

8" SEWER - 189.00

3~48" SD PIPE RETENTION

SHEET

JOB NO:

VERT:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

SCALE

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:

SU
M
M
ITE

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

T
M

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

P
H

O
N

E
:
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
F

A
X

:
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

4
7

-
8

5
5

9

HORIZ:

OF

N

o

.
15

4

9

4

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

EE
R

-

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.

15
4

9

4

NITIN  I.

BHAKTA

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

U-1 6

1"=40'

NONE

82500

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

R
U

B
Y

 
M

O
U

N
T

A
I
N

 
P

E
A

K
S

 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

U
T

I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A

NIB

NIB

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r
 
1

1
,
 
2

0
1

9
L
:
\
N

d
r
i
v
e
\
D

w
g
s
\
8
2
5
0
0
-
R

u
b
y
-
M

o
u
n
t
a
i
n
-
P

e
a
k
s
-
B

a
i
l
e
y
\
C

I
V

I
L
\
T

E
N

T
A

T
I
V

E
 
P

L
A

T
\
8
2
5
0
0
_
R

M
P

S
_
T

E
N

T
A

T
I
V

E
 
P

L
A

T
.
d
w

g

1
-
1
0
-
2
0

C
I
T

Y
 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
 
1
2
/
2
4
/
1
9

N
I
B

N
I
B

2

2

2



Agenda Item # I.A.4.  

Created on 03/20/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1-20, containing 

amendments to the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8, Land Use 

Component Corresponding Zoning Districts, Transportation Component Best 

Practice 2.3 and Roadway Classifications, Existing Functional Classification Atlas 

Map 11 and Atlas Map 12, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: February 4, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 30 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Planning Commission reviewed and initiated the 

amendment to the City of Elko Master Plan at its January 7, 2020 meeting. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Transportation document and Atlas map #12. 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to adopt Resolution 1-20, containing amendments to 

the City of Elko Master Plan; directing that an attested copy of the foregoing parts, 

amendments, extensions of and/or additions to the Elko City Master Plan be 

certified to the City Council; further directing that an attested copy of this 

Commission’s report on the proposed changes and additions shall have be filed with 

the City Council; and recommending to City Council to adopt said amendments by 

resolution. CL 
 

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

10. Agenda Distribution:  





CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department

1751 College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 · Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission
From: Cathy Laughlin –City Planner
Date: January 21, 2020
Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 4, 2020

Agenda Item:

1. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1-20, containing
amendments to the Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8, Land Use
Component Corresponding Zoning Districts, Transportation Component Best
Practice 2.3 and Roadway Classifications, Existing Functional Classification Atlas
Map 11 and Atlas Map 12, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Additional Information:

Proposed Change #1:
Proposed Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map 8

The City of Elko Master Plan Future Land Use Plan Atlas Map #8 designates APN 006-09M-003
as Low Density Residential similar to many Elko County parcels contiguous to the City of Elko
Boundary. This Master Plan amendment would change the land use designation for that parcel to
medium density residential similar to the designation on the north, west and east sides of the
parcel and provides a more uniform land use boundary at this location.



A small parcel of land which was part of another larger parcel until Jennings Way was developed
to bisect the parcel. It is currently shown as High Density Residential land use and abutting
Commercial Highway, staff feels that the irregular shaped parcel would be difficult to develop as
High Density Residential and proposes to change the designation to Commercial Highway to
allow for the parcels to be combined and developed as Commercial.

This parcel is currently zoned Residential but the Future Land Use designation is shown as
Highway Commercial. Staff is proposing to change the future land use designation to medium
density residential to be consistent with the existing zoning of residential.

The City of Elko has recently sold a small portion of the Mountain View Park to the adjacent
property owner to be included in his townhome subdivision development. Staff is proposing to
amend the future land use designation of this portion we sold from Parks Open Space to Mixed
Use Neighborhood.



Proposed Change #2
Land Use Component Corresponding Zoning Districts

Staff is proposing to add RB – Residential Business District under the corresponding zoning
districts of Neighborhood Mixed Use to bring that zoning district into conformance with the
Master Plan Land Use Component.

Proposed Change #3
Transportation Component Best Practice 2.3

Transportation Component Best Practice 2.3 Table 8 currently conflicts with Elko City Code 3-
2-17 for distance requirements between driveways and to intersections.

Proposed Change #4
Transportation Component Roadway Classifications

College Avenue is currently in the Transportation Component Roadway Classification schedule
as a Minor Arterial from 9th Street to Idaho Street.  We are proposing to change the classification
from 9th the 12th to a Residential Collector as the traffic count history from 2002 to 2018 doesn’t
justify the level of service for a Minor Arterial.

Proposed Change #5
Existing Functional Classification Atlas Map 11 and Atlas Map 12

With the proposed change in Roadway Classification for proposed change #4, Atlas Map 11 and
Atlas Map 12 would be required to be changed as well.



kj

kjkj

kj

Jennings Way Extension

Errecart Blvd Extension
12th Street Extension

C
at

tle
 D

r.

Sp
ru

ce
 S

t. 
Ex

te
ns

io
n

Statice

30

7
18
8
17

20

20

2930

19

19

5
8 9

9
16

8
17

16
20 21

17

21

4

8
5

20

29

5 5

9 10

3

9
16 15

10

2221
16 15

21 22

4
1110

23

11
1415

10

15 14
22 23

22 23

3 23

12

12
13

13

2 1

11

11
14

14

23

23

24

24

36
21

12
61

12

13

13
24

24

31
61

36

R
. 5

5 
E.

R
. 5

4 
E.

T. 34 N. 6

6

77
1 6

6

1818

18
18

7

7

R
. 5

5 
E.

R
. 5

6 
E.

T. 35 N.

T. 34 N.

T. 35 N.

N
V SR

 227

M
AN

ZA
NI

TA
 L

AN
E

MANZA
NITA

 D
RIV

E

BULLION ROAD

MAIN STREET

CAR
LIN

AS
PE

N 
W

AY

R
O

C
KL

AN
D

 D
R

IV
E

INTERSTATE 80

S PA
RK R

D

PA
RID

IS
E D

RIV
E

TERMIN
AL W

AY

RUBY 
VIS

TA
 D

RIV
E

SAGECREST DRIVE

PR
AT

T 
D

R
IV

E

LA
ST C

HANCE R
OAD

WAT
ER S

TR
EET

D
O

TT
A 

D
R

IV
E

JE
N

N
IN

G
S 

W
AY

C
O

LT
 D

R
IV

E

WEST ID
AHO STREET

M
AR

C
 C

O
U

R
T

INTERSTATE 80

IN
TE

RSTA
TE

 80

Atlas Map 8.
PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE PLAN

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.125
Miles

Map Legend
ELKO_SYMBOLS
Descriptio

kjFuture Ball Field Complex

kjFuture Cemetery

Section Lines

Section Lines

Future Roadways

NEIGHBD CTR

COMM-GEN

COMM-HWY

IND-BS PARK

IND-GEN

MU-DTWN

MU-NGHBHD

PARKS-OS

PUBLIC

RES-HD

RES-LD

RES-MD

RES-RL

CityLimits
Elko

9
16 15

10

2221
16 15

11
1415

10

15 14
22 23

14

14

23

°Printed 01/17/2020

O:\EditingMaps\Master Plan Maps\Future Land Use Plan.mxd



__________________________________________________________________________ Land Use 

 Land Use page 19

apartments, townhomes, condominiums, etc. Uses of land must comply 
with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not frustrate, 
this Master Plan’s goals and policies.  
  
 
Corresponding zoning districts:   

• C  General Commercial (with revisions) 
 
 
Neighborhood Mixed Use 
Neighborhood Mixed-Use are areas designated on the Elko Future Land 
Use Map intended for higher density residential development combined 
with neighborhood scale commercial activity. This designation features 
commercial uses such as grocery stores, corner stores, coffee shops, 
bookstores, video rentals, barber shops, hair salons, bakeries and 
bicycle repair. The Master Plan Land Use Map identifies several general 
locations for Neighborhood Mixed-Use development.  
 
Housing within this designation will range from higher density multi-family 
housing around the commercial core of the neighborhoods to medium 
density residential development away from the core.  Uses of land must 
comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not 
frustrate, this Master Plan’s goals and policies.  
 
 
Corresponding zoning districts:   

• CC  Convenience Commercial 

• CT  Commercial Transitional 

• RB  Residential Business 
 
 
General Industrial 
This land use designation includes light to heavy industrial type land 
uses as well as some of the more intense commercial uses. Land use 
activity in this category may include research and development, clean 
technology assembly and production as well as more intense industrial 
uses. It should be noted that these uses have some impact on 
surrounding areas in terms of noise, odor, dust or other nuisances that 
would likely extend beyond the property lines. Uses of land must comply 
with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not frustrate, 
this Master Plan’s goals and policies.  
 
 
Corresponding zoning districts:   

• LI  Light Industrial 

• IC  Industrial Commercial 

• GI  General Industrial 
 
 
Business Park Industrial 
This land use designation identifies future employment centers, and 
specifically those targeting high-technology, research, education, and 
training institutions. Light industrial uses are appropriate within this 
designation, provided there are no nuisances (odor, noise, dust) which 



 
Table 8 

ACCESS MANAGEMENT STANDARDS 
 

Roadway 
Functional 

Classification 

Signal 
Spacing 

Driveway 
Spacing 

Left-Turns 
from 

Roadways 
and 

Driveways 

Median 
Treatment 

Other 

Mixed 
Use/Main 

Street Major 
Arterial 

1/2 Mile 
desired 

 
1/3 Mile 

minimum 

350 ft.  
 

(right in/out 
only with 

deceleration 
lane) 

Only at Signal 
or Major 

Unsignalized 
Intersection/ 

Driveway 

Raised 
Median or 

TWLTL 

- No more than one 
driveway per property; 
joint driveways are 
recommended 

- Left turn in at major 
driveways/unsignalized 
roadways okay 

Industrial 
Major 

Arterial 

1/2 Mile 
desired 

 
1/3 Mile 

minimum 

350 ft.  
 

(right in/out 
only with 

deceleration 
lane) 

Only at Signal 
or Major 

Unsignalized 
Intersection/ 

Driveway 

TWLTL 

- No more than one 
driveway per property; 
joint driveways are 
recommended 

- Left turn in at major 
driveways/unsignalized 
roadways okay 

Commercial 
Major 

Arterial 

1/2 Mile 
desired 

 
1/3 Mile 

minimum 

350 feet 
 

(right in/out 
only with 

deceleration 
lane) 

Only at Signal 
or Major 

Unsignalized 
Intersection/

Driveway 

Raised 
Median or 

TWLTL 

- No more than one 
driveway per property; 
joint driveways are 
recommended 

- Left turn in at major 
driveways/unsignalized 
roadways okay 

Mixed 
Use/Main 

Street Minor 
Arterial 

1/2 Mile 
desired 

 
1/3 Mile 

minimum 

250 feet 
As 

Determined 
by Staff 

Raised 
Median or 

TWLTL 

- Do not offset driveways 
- A maximum of one full 

access driveway per 
property 

Industrial 
Minor 

Arterial 

1/2 Mile 
desired 

 
1/3 Mile 

minimum 

250 feet 
As 

Determined 
by Staff 

TWLTL 

- Do not offset driveways 
- A maximum of one full 

access driveway per 
property 

Commercial 
Minor 

Arterial 

1/2 Mile 
desired 

 
1/3 Mile 

minimum 

250 feet 
As 

Determined 
by Staff 

Raised 
Median or 

TWLTL 

- Do not offset driveways 
- A maximum of one full 

access driveway per 
property 



Residential 
Minor 

Arterial 

1/2 Mile 
desired 

 
1/3 Mile 

minimum 

250 feet 
As 

Determined 
by Staff 

Raised 
Median or 

TWLTL 

- Do not offset driveways 
- A maximum of one full 

access driveway per 
property 

Mixed 
Use/Main 

Street 
Collector  

1/4 Mile 
desired 

 
1/5 Mile 

minimum 

150 feet Yes 
Raised 

Median or 
TWLTL 

- Do not offset driveways 
- A maximum of one full 

access driveway per 
property 

Industrial 
Collector 

1/4 Mile 
desired 

 
1/5 Mile 

minimum 

150 feet Yes 
None 

Required 

- Do not offset driveways 
- A maximum of one full 

access driveway per 
property 

Commercial 
Collector 

1/4 Mile 
desired 

 
1/5 Mile 

minimum 
 

150 feet Yes 
Raised 

Median or 
TWLTL 

- Do not offset driveways 
- A maximum of one full 

access driveway per 
property 

Residential 
Collector 

1/4 Mile 
desired 

 
1/5 Mile 

minimum 
 

75 feet Yes 
None 

Required 
None 

Notes:  TWLTL = Two way left turn lane 
Sources: Fehr & Peers, 2010 

 



__________________________________________________________________________ Transportation

Transportation page 6

Rural Roadways

Rural Roadways provide direct access to residential properties located
within the Residential Suburban (RS) zoning district. Rural Roadways
typically serve lower traffic volumes under 600 vehicles per day,
roadways with a traffic volume over 600 vehicles per day should be
classified as a Collector Rural Road. Rural Roadways may be utilized in
the RS district which are self-contained and having lots no less than ½
acre in size.

Right-of-Way Width: 60 feet Local Rural Residential Road
Typical Travel Lanes: 2 lanes

Right-of-Way Width: 70 feet Collector Rural Residential Road
Typical Travel Lanes: 2 lanes

Elko Roadway Classification

The following provides the functional classifications for roadways within
the City of Elko based on existing street character and function:

Interstates and Interstate Interchanges

 Interstate 80 (I-80)
 Exit 298 (Idaho Street Interchange)
 Exit 301 (Mountain City Highway Interchange)
 Exit 303 (Jennings Way Interchange)

Principal Arterials/Other NDOT Roadways

 Lamoille Highway (State Route-SR 227)
 Mountain City Highway (SR 225)

Major Arterials

 5th Street, between Idaho Street and Lamoille Highway (SR 227)
 12th Street, between Idaho Street and Lamoille Highway (SR 227)
 Idaho Street
 Silver Street, Idaho Street to 5th Street

Minor Arterials

 5th Street, north of Idaho Street
 12th Street Extension (future)
 Cattle Drive, south of Mountain City Highway (SR 225) (future)
 College Avenue – 12th Street to Idaho Street
 Errecart Boulevard, between Silver Street and Bullion Road

(classification is Major Arterial once roadway is connected)
 Errecart Boulevard, west of Lamoille Highway (SR 227)

(classification is Major Arterial once roadway is connected)
 Jennings Way, northeast of Mountain City Highway (SR 225)

(classification is Major Arterial once roadway is connected)
 Jennings Way, northwest of Idaho Street (classification is Major

Arterial once roadway is connected)



__________________________________________________________________________ Transportation

Transportation page 7

 Powder House Road
 Powder House Road Extension (future)
 Ruby Vista Drive
 Silver Street, between 5th Street and 12th Street
 Spruce Road
 Spruce Road Extension (future)

Commercial/Industrial Collectors

 8th Street, between Elm Street and Silver Street
 9th Street
 12th Street, between College Avenue and Idaho Street
 13th Street
 14th Street
 30th Street
 Airport Road Extension (future)
 Aspen Way, between Mountain City Highway (SR 225) and

Westwood Drive
 Chris Avenue
 Colt Drive
 College Avenue – 9th Street to 12th Street
 College Parkway
 Commercial Street
 D Street
 Elm Street
 Fairground Road
 Front Street
 Golf Course Drive
 Last Chance Road
 Manzanita Lane
 Kittridge Canyon Road, between Paradise Drive and Idaho Street
 Pinion Road
 Railroad Street
 Silver Street, east of 12th Street
 Statice Street (Ruby Vista Drive to Delaware Street)Stitzel Road,

between Colt Way and Last Chance
 Water Street
 West Sage Street
 Wildwood Way, between Lamoille Highway (SR 227) and Stitzel

Road

Residential Collectors

 1st Street, south of Silver Street
 2nd Street
 3rd Street
 Argent Avenue
 Bluffs Avenue
 Bullion Road – Wilson Avenue
 Cattle Drive, north of Mountain City Highway (SR 255) (future)
 Cedar Street, between Fir Street and 6th Street
 Cedar Street, Mountain City Highway to Fir Street and 6th Street to

Idaho Street
 Clarkson Drive
 Connolly Drive
 Copper Street



Id
ah

o 
St

re
et

West Id
aho Street

Bullio
n Road

La
st

 C
hance

 R
oad

Mountain City Highway

N
orth 5th Street

S
u

n
d

a
n

ce
 D

ri
ve

W
ate

r S
tr

eet

Spru
ce R

oad

Ruby 
Vis

ta
 D

riv
e

Silv
er S

tr
eet

M
anza

nita
 D

riv
e

L
a

m
o

ille
 H

ig
hw

ay

Pin
io

n R
oad

Sagecrest Drive

C
o

n
n

o
ll

y 
D

ri
ve

Country
 C

lu
b D

r

Indian View Heights Drive

 

A
rg

en
t A

ve
nue

A
sp

en
 W

ay

C
a

n
yo

n
 D

ri
ve

Railr
oad S

tr
eet

G
olf C

ourse RoadJe
n

n
in

g
s 

W
a

y

C
re

st
v

ie
w

 D
ri

ve

12th Street

P
ra

tt
 D

ri
ve

Cedar S
tr

eet

Chris Aven u e

D
e

la
w

a
re

 D
ri

ve

C
o

lt
 D

ri
ve

Po
w

d
er

 H
o

u
se

 R
o

ad

Montrose Ln

East Jennings W
ay

Colle
ge A

ve
nue

Cla
rk

so
n D

riv
e

Erre
cart 

Boule
vard

Chilton Circle

Bluffs Avenue

Romeo Way

O
p

a
l D

ri
ve

Copper Street

E
l A

rm
u

th
 D

ri
ve

Ruby View Drive

13th Street

30th Street

W
ils

on A
ve

In
dust

ria
l W

ay

W
e

st
 S

a
g

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

Elm
 S

tr
eet

2nd Street

8th Street

South 9th Street

College
Parkway

Fa
irg

ro
und R

oad

5th Street

Mittry Avenue
Stitzel Road

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.80.1

Miles

°

Map Legend

Roadway Functional Classification

Interstate

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

NDOT Roadway

Collector

Regional Roadway

227

227

225

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

225

EXISTING FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION
ATLAS Map 11.



!C
!C

!C

!U

!U

!C

!C
!C

!C

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U

!U
!U

!U

!C

!C

!C

jk¬

jk¬

!C 

 

Id
a
h
o
 S

tr
e
e
t

West Id
aho Street

Bullio
n R

oad

La
st

 C
ha

nc
e 

R
oa

d

Mountain City Highway

N
orth 5th S

treet

S
u

n
d

a
n

c
e

 D
ri

v
e

W
at

er
 S

tre
et

Spr
uce

 R
oa

d

M
a
n
za

n
ita

 L
a
n
e

R
ub

y 
V
is

ta
 D

riv
e

S
ilv

er
 S

tre
et

M
an

za
ni

ta
 D

riv
e

L
a

m
o

ille
H

ighw
a
y

Pin
io
n 

R
oa

d

Sagecrest Drive

C
o

n
n

o
lly

 D
ri

v
e

Country
 C

lu
b D

r

Indian View Heights Drive

 

A
rg

e
n
tA

ve
nu

e

A
sp

e
n
 W

a
y

C
a

n
y
o

n
 D

ri
v
e

R
ai

lro
ad

 S
tre

et

G
o
lf C

ourse R
oadJ

e
n

n
in

g
s
 W

a
y

C
re

s
tv

ie
w

 D
ri

v
e

12th Street

P
ra

tt
 D

ri
v
e

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t

Chris Aven ue

D
e

la
w

a
re

 D
ri

v
e

C
o

lt
 D

ri
v
e

P
o
w

d
e
r 

H
o
u
se

 R
o
a
d

Montrose Ln

E
ast Jennings W

ay

C
ol

le
ge

 A
ve

nu
e

C
la

rk
so

n 
D
riv

e

Erre
ca

rt 
Boule

va
rd

Chilton Circle

Bluffs Avenue

Romeo Way

O
p

a
l 
D

ri
v
e

Copper Street

E
l A

rm
u

th
 D

ri
v
e

Ruby View Drive

13th Street

30th Street

W
ils

on
 A

ve

In
du

st
ria

l W
ay

W
e
s
t 
S

a
g

e
 S

tr
e
e
t

E
lm

 S
tre

et

2nd Street

8th Street

South 9th Street

College
Parkway

Fa
irg

ro
un

d 
R
oa

d

5th Street

Mittry Avenue

S
titzel R

o
ad

Airp
or

t R
d.

 E
xt

ens
io

n

9
th

 S
t. E

x
te

n
s
io

n

Front St. Extens io
n

Jennings Way Extension

C
a
tt
le

 D
r.

S
p

ru
c
e

 R
d

. 
E

x
te

n
s
io

n

Errecart Blvd Extension

1
2

th
 S

tre
e

t E
x
te

n
s
io

n

P
in

io
n

 R
d

. E
x
te

n
s
io

n

Statice St

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING

0 0.15 0.3 0.45 0.60.075

Miles

°

Future Roadway Network

Map Legend

Future Improvements

!U  Intersection Improvements

jk¬ Grade Separated Interchange

!C Install Traffic Control Device

Elko_Planned

Planned Roadway Classsification

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

Collector

Roadway Functional Classification

Interstate

Major Arterial

Minor Arterial

NDOT Roadway

Collector

Note: 

Roadway alignments are conceptual.

227

227

225

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

225

Statice: Ruby Vista Drive to west
-Collector
Ruby Vista: Statice to NYTC
-Minor Arterial
Cattle Drive: Mountain City Hwy. to Exit 298
-Minor Arterial
-Cattel Drive: Mountain City Hwy to 5th St
-Collector
9th St: Lamoille Hwy to Errecart Blvd
-Collector
Front St: A St. to Errecart Blvd
-Collector
Airport Road: W. Idaho St to Mountain City Hwy
-Collector

Future Roads_________________________

ATLAS MAP 12

Date Printed 11/27/2017

Regional Roadway



Agenda Item # I.B.1.  

Created on 1/21/2020  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 15-19, filed by 

Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled 

Tower Hill Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately 10.72 acres of 

property into 27 lots for residential development within the R1 (Single Family 

Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  February 4, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located southwest of Pheasant Drive 

between Chukar Drive and Deerfield Way. (APN 001-929-124) 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council accept, on behalf of the 

public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with 

the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with 

the tentative map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install 

improvements in accordance with the approved construction plans that satisfies the 

requirements of Title 2 Chapter 3, and conditionally approve Final Map 15-19 with 

findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report dated January 21, 2020. 

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated January 21, 2020 

 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC 

    Attn: Scott MacRitchie 

    4518 N. 32nd Street 

    Phoenix, AZ 85018 

   scott@macritchie.com 

 

   High Desert Engineering 

   Attn: Tom Ballew 

   tcballew@frontiernet.net 

 

 





Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: January 21, 2020
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: February 4, 2020
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.B.1.
APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Map 15-19
APPLICANT: Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Tower Hill Phase 3

A Final Map for the division of approximately 10.72 acres into 27 lots for single family
residential development within an R1 (Single Family Residential) zoning district.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 2 of 8

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-929-124

PARCEL SIZE: 10.72 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R1) Single-Family Residential.

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

BACKGROUND:

1. The Final Map for Tower Hill Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Tower Hill Tentative Map.

3. The City Council conditionally approved the Tower Hill Tentative Map.
4. Three phases were shown on the Tentative Map.
5. The subdivision is located on APN 001-929-124.
6. The proposed subdivision consists of 27 residential lots.
7. The total subdivided area is approximately 10.72 acres.
8. The proposed density is 2.52 units per acre.
9. Approximately 1,580 acres are offered for dedication for street development.
10. Drainage and utility easements are provided along all lot lines.
11. The property is located southwest of Pheasant Drive (Phase 2) between Chukar Drive and

Deerfield Way.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North: Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential (R1) / Developed
 South: Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential (R1) / Vacant
 East (County): Open Space (OS) / Vacant
 West: Commercial (C) / Developed (Lamoille Highway)

Planned Commercial (PC) / Vacant

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The area abuts previous residential development to the northeast, a church to the

northwest, and vacant property on all other sides.
 The parcel has some significant slope down to Lamoille Highway, which is incorporated

into the design of the lots where possible.
 The property will be accessed off of Stitzel Road via either Deerfield Way or Chukar

Drive.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 3 of 8

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-7 Final Map State (Stage III)
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-8 Content and Format of Final Map Submittal
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-9 to 3-3-16 (Inclusive) Subdivision Design Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-3-17 to 3-3-22 (Inclusive) Public Improvements/

Guarantees
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 Zoning Code

Standards
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located outside of any capture zone for City of Elko wells.  Development of the
site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street drainage will be
directed to a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE III):

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) – The Final Map is in conformance with the zone
requirements.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) – The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 4 of 8

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content – The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,

township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.

C. Survey Data
1. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of

the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.

2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the

Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The locations of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements

and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a

notary public.
F. Additional Information

1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine

the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is located adjacent to a city boundary, which is shown on the Final

Map.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.

G. City to Check
1. Closure calculations have been provided. Civil improvement plans have been

approved. Drainage plans have been approved.  An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 5 of 8

2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required Certifications

1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right-of-ways shown on the Final

Map.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City

Council.
4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final

Map.
5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required

language.
6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided

with the required language.
8. The engineer of record has submitted the Tentative Map and construction plans to

the state, but no written approval has been received.
9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map

with the required language.
10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code. The developer is also responsible for construction of a portion of the
shared-use pathway along the west side of Lamoille Highway.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code. The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all permits
in accordance with this section of City code.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 6 of 8

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as paving and utilities within the
Chukar Drive and Deerfield Way right-of-ways.

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this section
of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Tower Hill Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation
Components of the Master Plan.

4. The proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive).

5. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

6. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 7 of 8

7. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.

9. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.

10. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
code.

11. The proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-
2-17 of City code.

12. The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

2. The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30
days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

4. The Final Map for Tower Hill Phase 3 is approved for 27 single family residential lots.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

6. Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

7. Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

8. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

9. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

Page 8 of 8

inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works.  All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.



























































Agenda Item # I.B.2. 

Created on 01/17/17  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on the 2019 Annual Report of 

Planning Commission activities. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: February 4, 2020 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Pursuant to City Code Section 3-4-23, the Planning 

Commission is required to prepare and present an annual report of its activities to 

the City Council. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the 2019 Annual Report of Planning 

Commission Activities as presented, and forward a recommendation to City Council 

to approve the report. 

 

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

10. Agenda Distribution:  





City of Elko
Planning Commission
2019 Annual Report

Chairman Jeff Dalling
Vice-Chairman Evi Buell
Secretary Tera Hooiman

Commissioner John Anderson
Commissioner Gratton Miller

Commissioner Stefan Beck
Commissioner Ian Montgomery



APPLICATIONS
PROCESSED

Application 2019 2018 2017
Annexations 1* 1 3

Boundary Line Adjustments (admin.) 6 0 1

Conditional Use Permits 13* 7* 6

Appeals (City Council) 1 0 1

Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk Waivers 2 (C.C.) 2 (C.C.) 1* (C.C)

Detachments 1* 0 0

Home Occupation Permits (admin.) 42 53* 37*

Land Sales/Leases/Acquisitions (C.C.) 1 0 2

Parcel Maps (mostly administrative) 9 10 8*

Parking Waivers 0 2 0

Reversions to Acreage (City Council) 0 1 2

Revocable Permits (mostly City Council) 1 5 4

Rezones 5 8 12

Site Plan Reviews 0 2 0

Subdivisions

Pre-Applications, Stage 1 7 4 0

Tentative Maps 5 3 2

Final Maps 4 7 2

Temporary Sign Clearances (admin.) 4 2 4

Temporary Use Permits 1 2* 4

Vacations 12* 4 1

Variances 4 13* 5

Appeals (City Council) 0 1 0

* see next page TOTAL 119 127 95

A summary of the tasks and accomplishments of the City
of Elko Planning Commission for the 2019 calendar year:



APPLICATIONS
PROCESSED Cont.

Application
Annexations 1 – 2019 Annexation application

withdrawn by applicant

Conditional Use Permits 1 – 2018 Conditional Use Permit Transfer
from 2003

1 – 2018 Conditional Use Permit Transfer
from 1986

1 – 2019 Conditional Use Permit Transfer
from 1995

Curb, Gutter, & Sidewalk Waivers 2 – 2016 applications on hold

1 – 2017 application on hold

Detachments 1 – 2019 Detachment application
withdrawn by applicant

Home Occupation Permits (admin.) 1 – 2018 application withdrawn

1 – 2017 application paid but never
finished

1 – 2017 application withdrawn

2 – 2016 applications paid but never
finished

Parcel Maps 3 – 2017 applications refunded

Temporary Use Permits 1 – 2018 application withdrawn

Vacations 8 – 2019 applications for the City of Elko
NO CHARGE

Variances 1 – 2018 application refunded



INTERACTION WITH and SUPPORT OF
the

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
and the

REDEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL

 Analyzed applications within the Redevelopment
Area for general conformance with the
Redevelopment Plan.

 Commissioner Dalling is a member of the
Redevelopment Advisory Council and therefore
keeps the Planning Commission informed of
redevelopment happenings.



 Zoning revisions or clarification on properties
throughout the City of Elko. (Ongoing)

 Review zoning for the RMH districts, revise map. (In
progress)

 Updated the Transportation Component and
Transportation Atlas #12 with El Armuth Connection.

CITY OF ELKO
MASTER PLAN and other

PROJECT PLANS



CITY OF ELKO
ZONING and SUBDIVISION

ORDINANCE and CITY CODE
AMENDMENTS

 Revisions to the Section 3-9 Sign Ordinance. (In progress)

 Revisions to the Planning Department applications. (In
Progress)

 Amendment to 3-2-3 to account for changes in Curb,
Gutter, and Sidewalk requirements.

 Amendment to 3-4-1 Planning Commission to update with
NRS.



PLANNING DEPARTMENT
FILING FEES COLLECTED

TOTAL FEES COLLECTED FOR 2019
$35,950

2018 - $39,000 (difference of -$3,050)

Annexations
Boundary Line Adjustments
Conditional Use Permits
Curb, Gutter and Sidewalk

Waivers
Home Occupation Permits
Parking Waivers
Parcel Maps
Reversions to Acreage
Revocable Permits
Rezones
Subdivisions
Temporary Use Permits
Vacations
Variances

2019
$ 0

$ 1,200
$ 9,375

$ 500

$ 2,100
$ 0

$ 2,225
$ 0

$ 400
$ 2,500

$ 13,200
$ 300

$ 2,400
$ 1,750

2018
$ 1,000

$ 0
$ 3,750

$ 500

$ 2,575
$ 100

$ 2,325
$ 300

$ 2,000
$ 3,300

$ 16,100
$ 300

$ 2,400
$ 4,350


































